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Deloitte. =

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
R G

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS

(HONG KONG) LIMITED B S B AR (B M) H IR B
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited (B IBET IR 9 E IR A )
liability)

Opinion 2R

We have audited the consolidated financial AAZBER(LL TR (2840 Y EBsT7I &
statements of Huatal Financial Holdings (Hong 8 % 154 B ¥R SRR (EFER)E R A F

Kon_g).Li.mited (the ."Company") and its AT (24T EEHBATCLT
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the SRR [RED O NEAHMBEEE, WS
"Group") set out on pages 8 to 154, which 835 A4 A 2024 EWIZ )‘%‘ 31 B H"J;V*AIHJE%
comprise the consolidated statement of financial ; N N e
position as at 31 December 2024, and the RRFREMEZA LR GRARERHA
consolidated statement of profit or loss and el R, AeERSIRNGESH
other comprehensive income, consolidated SWER, UREEMBREMEE, 8%

statement of changes in equity and consolidated EERE=EEERMNHEMMENEE{ER.
statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including material accounting

policy information and other explanatory

information.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial B As, ZSEAMBERRECIRES
statements give a true and fair view of the HEHEACHEAN (SR EEsw

consolidated financial position of the Group as A EEMhSKRmT SEER 2004
at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated £ 12 B 31 ARSI BIRRERE DR
N 7 1=

financial performance and its consolidated cash .
H 4 A 4 A 3
flows for the year then ended in accordance i EENGEMBERARGSHEN

with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by Ho
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA").

INspire HIK
REIEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB AR &

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements section of

our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IR S

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an anditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

WAL TR &

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

P8 A% YRR o

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists,.
we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BTN ER &

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

¢ Plan and perform the group audit to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business units within the group as
a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Do

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 April 2025
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HUATAI FINANCIAT, HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREMBREBFRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

EAEBRBREMETERRE
HE 20244 12 A 31 HIEEH

NOTES
i
Revenue A 5
- Revenue from contracts with - IRIBEBM SRS
customers within the scope HERIEE 15 9%
of HKFRS 15 B EFEHEA
- Interest under effective - IR EMR L
interest method FHEAF B
- Qthers - HAth
Other income ARl A 6
Staff costs B A 7
Finance costs 4 g i 8
Depreciation g
Amortisation bEiE ]
(Provision for)/reversal of RIAE RS
expected credit loss (/5 B 9
Other operating expenses HitnR e & A 9
Loss before taxation LR EIR 10
Income tax expense RLTHBA 3T 11
Loss after taxation MR R

— 96 —

2024 2023

HKS$ HKS$
(421,784,869) 977,174,183
484,798,704 468,295,161
171,231,596 228,908,669
(1,077,815,169) 279,970,353
3,592,668,715 2,949,317,368

3,170,883,846
(1,224,454.511)
(2,113,649,158)
(151,781,652)
(22,179,559)

(71,151,005)
(783,492,452)

3,926,491,551
(1,165,723,059)
(1,996,062,571)
(143,531,209)
(13,275,661)

6,708,283
(915,127,444)

(1,195,824,491)
(32,006,626)

(300,520,110)
(7,992,843)

(1,227,831,117)

(308,512,953)




HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EFeMERGEERRAHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
GEEREEASTRER - &

BE 20244 12 A 31 HIEEERE

NOTE 2024
BtEE HKS .
B
Loss for the year AERERRIR
Other comprehensive H Aot 0 2R
(expense) / income
Items that may be reclassified R AT GEE Y 575775
subsequently to profit or loss: HEE B -
- Exchange differences on -ESNRB AT

translation of financial A g 1Y

(1,227,831,117)

2023
HK$
oo

(308,512,953)

statements of overseas SN 2B
. subsidiaries (8,517,919) 16,145,169
- Cash flow hedge: net movement - & E HHH:
in the hedging reserve ERA M EENRE (90,106,097) (6,134,015)
- Net movement in financial - BAFEERhemE
assets at fair value through other AR B £
comprehensive income B EEIFE 197,847
Ttems that will not be reclassified EEGTEEN A S
subsequently to profit or loss: eI IEE:
- Revaluation of self-occupied - BE LA Y
land and buildings X 12 (600,000) (1,250,000)
Other comprehensive (expense)/  FEEHAMMEH (B
income for the year W2k (99,224,016) 8,959,001
Total comprehensive expense ERELHHEE
for the year AR (1,327,055,133) (299,553,952)
_9.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGRER(FE)FRLF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
BEEBBEIRRE
20244 12 A 31 H

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Self-occupied land and
buildings
- Other property, plant
and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Interest in joint venture
Deferred tax assets
Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Other assets

Current assets

Accounts receivable

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under
resale agreements

Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Amount due from immediate
holding company

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

Cash and deposits

Bank balances held on behalf
of customers

E[E )¢
ElEEE
- BR bRy

- R

- ERERE
REEERETER
IR SER IR B
&, FRITRIER

Hofth AR
HAth 3

TBFE

JEYA B K

AT EEHRER
NEHERIEE

RABRESREER

e, BASUAR
HoAth YR

B B AR
BR

e R A A R
IR

BemiFsR

REFFERSRT
REBR
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NOTES
Bi&E

12
12
12, 14
28
16
19(b)

21
13

20
17
29
21
34

34
22(a)

22(a)

2024 2023

HKS HKS

i BT
11,375,000 11,975,000
72,353,919 100,908,453
127,773,873 215,222,497
92,820,828 70,610,924
225,442,034 420,879,122
7,100,000 7,100,000
30,339,543 19,770,118
151,412,937 138,292,542
718,618,134 984,758,656

4,017,919,732
7,300,723,671
4,057,900
177,453,063
40,836,336,391

15,525,510,561
2,599,293,548

3,517,961,448

5,133,523,907
12,046,894,144
68,098,153
138,547,153
53,377,937,651

26,561,166,476
2,794,266,488

2,572,093,867

73,979,256,314

102,692,527,839
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREMEREFBFRLF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
SRR - H
20244 12 A 31 H

NOTES 2024 2023
Fi5E HKS$ HK$
T e
Current liabilities nEAE
Financial liabilities at fair AP EEIEENER
value through profit or loss )= U=} 17 22,219,367,761 32,910,688,376
Financial assets sold under HHREesMEER 30 - 29,107,957
repurchase agreements
Accounts payable JE{TERER 23 4,925,970,241 3,637,663,324
Amounts due to fellow TEAT IR 2 BB 24 )
subsidiaries I8 34 499,582 502,437
Amount due to ultimate JE(TRRIBIT A T
holding company I8 34 9,317,760 9,373,680
Debt securities issued BRI ERER 26 11,116,529,722 9,599,066,512
Loan payables e 35 410,070,218 1,025,570,385
Lease liabilities HEAR 24 88,677,153 89,102,358
Other payables and accruals HAbE TR R EBET & 25 3,167,401,738 3,762,940,193
Tax payable JEfF#IIE 19(a) 11,431,828 2,722,446
41,949,266,003  51,066,737,668
Net current assets B Ml 32,029,990,311 51,625,790,171
Non-current liabilities E [ ng=T =
Subordinated loans from REEEERATN
immediate holding company BEER 34 8,541,280,000 8,592,540,000
Debt securities issued DT EBES 26 13,298,257,359  31,636,998,197
Lease liabilities BEAH 24 45,823,709 137,783,485
Deferred tax liabilities UEFEFIR & 4% 19(b) 15,300,000 14,700,000
Other payables and accruals HibE T RIESTER 25 629,807,397 685,603,003
22,530,468,465  41,067,624.685
Net assets BEFE 10,218,139,980  11,542,924,142
-11 -
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREAIIREE)ERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

AR E R IARILER - 81

20244 12 H 31 H

NOTE 2024 2023
FaE HK$ HKS
It &
Capital and reserves RARE
Share capital AL 27 8,800,000,000 8,800,000,000
Reserves Gl 1,418,139,980 2,742,924,142
Equity attributable to EAFBERFEAN
owners of the Company EAS AR 10,218,139,980 11,542,924,142

The consolidated financial statements on pages 8 to 154 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22 April 2025 and were signed on their behalf by:

BSE IS4 AMGEMBIRMECON 2025 4 A 2 OHEFCHERIRETE, WHUTEER

REE
4
7 - 7 %

WANG Lei QIAO Wei |
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
T - TR
HE EHH

-12 -
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HUATAIFINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMEREBARAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

FEEReRER

HBE2024E 12 A 31 HILEE

Operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation
Finance costs
Share-based payment expenses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Provision for/{reversal of)
expected credit loss
Fair value changes in investment
in joint venture

Decrease/(increase) in accounts
receivable
Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in financial
assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Net movement in amount due
from/to ultimate holding company
Net movement in amount due
from/to immediate holding
company
Net movement in amounts
due from/to fellow subsidiaries

{Increase)/decrease in bank balances held

on behalf of customers
Increase/(decrease) in

accounts payable
(Decrease)/increase in other payables

and accruals
Decrease in financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets

held under resale agreements
Decrease in financial assets

sold under repurchase agreements

EBIEEY
AR
THEIFE -
FLSHA
i ]
i
il B A A
BLAS (7 R TR ST AT B A
H & B 2 & ErIRE A
FHEREEHE
W /(R E)
FEAERERNATE
wEy

PR AR R Rl 20/ (38 )

e, FBARIEAK
FoAt R 1 A0

BATFERR L AR
SR AR/ )

BEAFEERamR S
PR & R i

Feft 2 2 (B0

BB RS AR
RIRSENER

Bl iR R A R
FORSENS R

Tt/ At 1R 2 FE B 2
PR ENRIR

& PR PRATH S
(X m)/ e

FEARRAEIN/GR D)

AT SRR IEST H A
() n
BATFEERBNERM
&Rt A EBD
BNEEEREER
P18 )
HUEMEeREER

—-102 —

NOTES
FEE

2024 2023
HKS HKS
(1,195,824,491) (300,520,110)
(2,851,069,405) (2,342,065,488)
151,781,652 143,531,209
22,179,559 13,275,661
2,050,640,267 1,942,863,827
2,270,971 6,345,645
1,775 -
71,151,005 (6,708,283)
195,437,088 409,176,522
(1,553,431,579) (134,101,017)
1,044,453,170 (473,621,436)
(49,475,335) (51,656,881)

4,746,170,473
(13,120,395)
(51,315,920)

14,811,780,480

11,035,653,060

(945,867,581)
1,288,306,917

(467,154,886)
157,964,348
4,631,372
16,320

(11,288,994,081)

6,963,821,386

484,543,262
(541,646,160)

(651,334,061) 1,016,683,373
(10,781,426,712) (6,634,604,049)
64,040,253 (15,934,399)
(29,107,957) (11,057,437)
-14 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREBERAHF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

RERERER - #

A 2024 4F 12 B 31 HIFERE

NOTES 2024 2023
FizE HKS$ HKS$

Operating activities - continued REB N - 3
Cash generated from/(used in) BB EBEE/FTRINEE 18,915,324,813 (10,991,110,285)

operations
Interest received ECF 8 362,345,331 323,737,662
Tax paid EATIE (22,697,244) (28,528,826)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EBEBES/(FTRHI

operating activities BlEH 19,254,972,900 (10,695,901,449)
Investing activities B E
Purchase of fixed assets M RE (35,780,269) (70,963,642)
Purchase of intangible assets NETLHE (44,389,463) (49,984,841)
Net cash used in BEVEBIET AR

investing activities HeEE (80,169,732) (120,948,483)
Financing activities RO EE)
Proceeds from bank loans BiRITEZWINIERE 22(b) 2,868,681,820 18,899,000,000
Repayment of bank loans {RIBRITEE 22(b) (3,483,681,820) (18,466,923,000)
Proceeds from issuance BITEBGRENR

of debt securities IR 22(b) 4,738,270,513 33,002,543,981
Redemption of debt securities issued B = B ST TR aE 22(b) (21,413,850,017) (22,479,112,558)
Capital element of lease payments HEEELEH D 22(b) {92,384,981) (81,281,652)
Finance costs paid O f7 Rl 3% A 22(b) (1,978,293,704) (1,489,488,185)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BB EEIT R EE

financing activities HI &3 (19,361,258,189) 9,384,738,586
Decrease in cash RENRE&SFHYRL (186,455,021) (1,432,111,346)

and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1A 1 BREREM

1 January REe%EY 2,794,266,488 4,195,388,682
Effect in foreign exchange SRS EE RS

rate changes (8,517,919 30,989,152
Cash and cash equivalents at 12 B 31 HRRE

31 December IR S%HY 22(a) 2,599,293,548 2,794,266,488

-15-
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERERER(FE)ERAH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
AR ENE
#HZE 20244 12 B 31 HIEEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)

Limited (the "Company") is a public company

and was incorporated in Hong Kong on

23 November 2006 with limited liability. The

registered office address of the Company is
located at 62/F, The Center, 99 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are
investment holding, dealing in securities and
futures contracts, provision of margin
financing, advising on securities, corporate
finance and asset management services.

The Company is a licensed corporation under

Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")
which is licensed to perform the following

regulated activities: dealing in securities (Type

1), dealing in futures contracts (Type 2),
leveraged foreign exchange trading (Type 3),
advising on securities (Type 4), advising on
corporate finance (Type 6), providing

automated trading services (Type 7) and asset

management (Type 9).

On 17 February 2025, the Company obtained
abovementioned Type 3 license from
Securities and Futures Comrnission for
leveraged foreign exchange trading.

On 29 Aprii 2021, the Company was granted
an insurance broker company license from
Insurance Authority to carry on regulated
activities in general and long-term business

(including linked long-term business), and the

license is valid until 28 April 2027.

— 104 —
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREREREE)FRAH]

GENERAL INFORMATION - continued 1.

On 5 May 2023, the Company was approved
as an issuer of Listed Structured Products
(Warrants and CBBCs) by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK").

In addition, the Company is an Exchange
Participant, a SPAC Exchange Participant and
a Option Trading Exchange Participant of
SEHK, a Direct Clearing Participant of the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited ("HKSCC") and the SEHK Options
Clearing House Limited ("SEOCH"), a
Clearing Participant of the HKFE Clearing
Corporation Limited ("HKCC"), a Futures
Commission Merchant of the Hong Kong
Futures Exchanges Limited ("HKFE"), a
market maker on the International Order Book
under London Stock Exchange, a non-trading
member of Turquoise Global Holdings
Limited, a member participant of Macau
Exchange and a listing member and trading
member of Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Subsequently on 14 February 2023 and

20 October 2023, the Company obtained the
Options Market Maker Permit and Dual
Counter Market Maker Permit from SEHK
respectively.

On 10 May 2024, the Company was registered
as a lead managing underwriter of Tokyo Pro-
Bond Market under Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huatai International Financial Holdings
Company Limited, a company incorporated in
the Hong Kong. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company's ultimate holding
company is Huatai Securities Co., Ltd., a
company incorporated in the People's Republic
of China and is listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 601688) and Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 6886) and
the global depository receipts ("GDRs") of
which are listed on the London Stock
Exchange (Symbol: HTSC).
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMBREE)RRAT

GENERAL INFORMATION - continued

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$")
which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company, and were approved for issue by
the Board on 22 April 2025.

In the event of any inconsistency between the
English and Chinese version of these financial
statements, the English version shall prevail.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback

Amendments to Classifications of Liabilities
HKAS 1 as Current or Non-current

and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretations 5 (2020)

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities

HKAS 1 with Covenants

Amendments to Supplier Financing
HKAS 7 and Arrangements
HKFRS 7

Application of the amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSRERER)ERLA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not vet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to Amendments to the

HKFRS 9 Classification and
and HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to Confracts Referencing

HKFRS ¢ Nature-dependent
and HKFRS 7 Electricity®
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 Assets between an Investor
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Accounting HKFRS Accounting

Standards Standards - Volume 11°
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability?
HKAS 21
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure of
Financial Statements*
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2025.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2026.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2027.
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HUATAT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREGMER(EEFRAF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not vet effective

- confinued

Except for new and the amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all other amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments

The amendments to HKFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments" clarify the recognition and
derecognition for financial asset and financial
liability and add an exception which permits
an entity to deem a financial liability to be
discharged before the settlement date if it is
settled in cash using an electronic payment
system if, and only if certain conditions are
met.

The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7
"Financial Instruments: Disclosures” in respect
of investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are amended. In
particular, entities are required to disclose the
fair value gain or loss presented in other
comprehensive income during the period,
showing separately those related to
investments derecognised during the reporting
period and those related to investments held at
the end of the reporting period. An entity is
also required to disclose any transfers of the
cumulative gain or loss within equity related
to the investments derecognised during the
reporting period. In addition, the amendments
introduce the requirements of qualitative and
quantitative disclosure of contractual terms
that could affect the contractual cash flow
based on a contingent event not directly
relating to basic lending risks and cost.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGBRER (BB IRAF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not vet effective
- continued

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments

- continued

The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2026, with early application
permitted. The Group is in the process of
assessing the impact of this Amendment to the
Group.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements", which sets out
requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. This
new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in
HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to
present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss;
provide disclosures on management-defined
performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS § " Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"
and HKFRS 7 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures". Minor amendments to HKAS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" and HKAS 33
"Earnings per Share" are also made.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective
- continued

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in
Financial Statements - continued

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other
standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application
of the new standard is expected to affect the
presentation of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and disclosures in the future
consolidated financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed
impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

HKERS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures

HKFRS 19 "Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures” permits eligible
subsidiaries, while applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements
set out in other HKFRS Accounting Standards,
to provide reduced disclosure requirements in
their consolidated, separate and individual
financial statements. An eligible intermediate
parent that does not apply HKFRS 19 in its
consolidated financial statement may do so in
its separate financial statements,
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective
- continued

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures - continued

Unless specified in this standard, an entity
applying HKFRS 19 need not apply the
disclosure requirements in other HKFRS
Accounting Standards nor include any
statements about, or reference to, those
disclosure requirements. For new or amended
HKFRS Accounting Standards, any relief
available to an entity applying HKFRS 19
from disclosure requirements about the entity's
transition to that new or amended HKFRS
Accounting Standards will be set out in the
new or amended HKFRS Accounting
Standards.

This standard is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
with early application permitted. If an entity
elects to apply HKFRS 19 for a reporting
period earlier than the reporting period in
which it first applies HKFRS 18, it is required
to apply a modified set of disclosure
requirements set out in an appendix to HKFRS
19.

The Group is still in the process to assess
whether to elect to apply the reduced
disclosures requirements in the future
consolidated and separate financial statements.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREB)FIRAA

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS Accounting Standards"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the "Group").

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value or
revalued amount as explained in the material
accounting policy information set out below:

- Self-occupied Jand and buildings;

- investments in financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss;

- derivative financial instruments.
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HUATA! FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGUER(EEFRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

The preparation of financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRS Accounting Standards
that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in the
"Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty" section.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)FRLF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements ~ continued

Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Huatai Securities Co., Ltd has applied section
379 and section 380 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance ("HKCO") and paragraph
4 of HKFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial
Statements" to prepare company level financial
statements as the Company's statutory financial
statements. Those financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the HKCO.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024 have been
prepared for the purpose of providing additional
information to the management on the financial
position and financial performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis. Consequently, these consolidated
financial information and the comparatives do
not constitute the Company's statutory financial
statements for either of the years ended

31 December 2024 or 2023. Information
relating to the Company's statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the HK.CO is as
follows:

The Company's auditor has yet to report on the
Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 whilst had reported
the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The aunditor's report
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
unqualified, did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention by
way of emphasis without qualifying its report;
and did not contain a statement under sections
406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the HKCO.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSMEREBRRLF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment",
leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 "Leases" ("HKFRS
16"), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as value in use in HKAS 36 "Impairment
of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

— 115 -

SHBERRNRREE R EREGS
HER -4

=4
2\75

o

AT

AFETIREE BT 2 8 E R E
P32 5 o A e T A R (B
SATHIREE, MARZEERTEEDY
B s T Al E T il AT
e EREH Y B ERANEH
RrgHEZEENARNISE, RlERE
Wt RER AN A T EREEE
IR RS A BB E
BB B R A E TR L E A

R, ERREBYHRSG AR 25

[ AR AR B ok SERE PRy LLAR (2
RERESIARR S . BT EIER
HHERIE 1659 [HE] ( [FEMBER
TR 16 38 NRKNBEERZ S, L
KERZTER #R FR U7 (H3p 352
BEMETE, FNEBEEERIZE 36 3
[EERE] BERRERS.

_H

FeRmRENATEFEEERTIZS
BLE e R E AR R RE EER A
&, BUSREE N TR R ORI R
RAEENRERBHAMTIESH

&, FTEEREEN.

REATER G EMIATS, AR
HERRERUDSTREM IS 2
ATFEZAAETE, HETEETR
IE, PABROIATERE SR AR
SRR 5 HI%.

227



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSREREE)ARAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fair value - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Subsidiaries and joint ventures

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

When the Group is an investor of a fund in
which the Group also acts as a fund manager,
the Group will determine whether itis a
principal or an agent for the purpose of
assessing whether the Group controls the
relevant fund.
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HUATAT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERLTMBEERERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries and joint ventures - continued

An agent is a party primarily engaged to act on
behalf and for the benefit of another party or
parties (the principal(s)) and therefore does not
control the investee when it exercises its
decision-making authority. In determining
whether it is an agent to the fund, the Group
would assess:

- the scope of its decision-making authority
over the investee;

- the rights held by other parties;

- the remuneration to which it is entitled in
accordance with the remuneration
agreements; and

- the decision maker's exposure to variability
of returns from other interests that it holds in
the investee.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no impairment evidence.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)ERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries and joint ventures - continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset,
or where applicable, the cost of initial
recognition of an investment in associate or a
joint venture,

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is qualified to
apply exemption from equity method when the
investment in a joint venture is held by, or is
held indirectly through, a group entity that is
venture capital organisation or similar entity,
those investments in associates and joint
ventures may be measured at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9").
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EREMEREB)FRAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries and joint ventures - continued

Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
The cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the joint venture that forms part
of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see below on
impairment on non-financial assets). Any
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss, and post-tax other
comprehensive income for the year are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

‘When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
{ransactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the
group's interest in the investee except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSMBR(EEERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries and joint ventures - continued

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises loan
payable, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities on the date on
which they are originated. All other
financial instruments (including regular-
way purchases and sales of financial
assets) are recognised on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way
purchases or sale are purchases or sale of
financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market
place.

A financial asset or financial liability is
measured initially at fair value plus or
minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss ("EVTPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
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EREMEREEFRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(it) Classification and subsequent
measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI") or EVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding,.

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCIL
only if it meets both of the following

conditions and is not designated as at
EVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding,
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ERSRBREB)VERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that on initial
recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income ("OCI"). This
election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

- oninitial recognition it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit making; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, on initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
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EREMEREB)FRAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. BEMHRRINGHEERENES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RS-

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued SHEEESRHEE - &

(i) Classification and subsequent (i) SEEHBEE-H

measurement - continued

Business model assessment EHHEEEHY

The Group makes an assessment of the FEETEHASBESEFENEET

objective of a business model in which an H¥ERER > B8, FAESE

asset is held at a portfolio level because o S 7 4 TR f T 05 Y [ A B B 1t

this best reflects the way the business is = g fi= B - . A

managed and information is provided to ERITR. ZFRIE SR

management. The information considered

includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for - HHERIEEEBUER B LR
the portfolio and the operation of those PSR EEEE, TEHE,
policies in practice. In particular, T E IR R D B AN IS
whether management's strategy focuses A e ek e s
on earning contractual interest revenue, :gi“:ggﬁggﬁ% ngﬁiﬁ
maintaining a particular interest rate ;_# o e i " e o por
profile, matching the duration of the Eata E#T"%ﬁzﬁ{ﬁ HIK
financial assets to the duration of the HAHMNER L EZEREY
liabilities that are funding those assets RIR&RE;
or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is - HEHERRNEFTEERERT
evaluated and reported to the Group's AEFNSEE,
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of - BEERER(REZERENAT
the business model (and the financial FENSMEE)EZHRERLL
assets held within that business model) T AT A T S R
and how those risks are managed,
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EREHEREBEIRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Business model assessment - continued

- how managers of the business are
compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair vaiue
of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of
sales in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and its expectations about
future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of
an overall assessment of how the
Group's stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and
how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or
managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL because they are
neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets.

— 124 -

FEMBRENRENEREREREE
BEER -#

M EEREHAE - #
(i) AEEHEINE-H

HEFHEITEG -8

- EFHEEARMMEEER -
PlansRB R TR EE S &
KA FEEFTRN SRS
mERE; X

- BN EER. BER
HERE, HEREURRE
HEEBIRTE. AW, BH
HEEBNE SRS
K, MEEABRFMhAEE
HHREMEE T HIZEREE B
BESRAEREREN—
e

FrIERC o Fig e E e R R A
FEREEF RN SRMEETIRATF
EERBAER, ERFAESEE
AR EHRERE, BFAR
R A REMER HESRE
.

-36 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREEEREE)ERLF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCQUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(1)

Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Assessment whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment,
"principal" is defined as the fair value of
the financial asset on initial recognition.
"Interest" is defined as consideration for
the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin. In
assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change
the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group's claim to
cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of
the time value of money - e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.
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ERSHMEREBETRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Amortised cost and interest income

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
agset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments measured at
FVTOCI, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below on credit impairment of
financial assets). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period (with the amortised cost
being the gross carrying amount less the
impairment allowance). If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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ERSHEREB)ERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(it Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss exclude
any dividend and interest income on the
financial assets.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL,

Financial liabilitics are classified as at
EFVTPL when the financial liability is (i)
held for trading, or (ii} those designated as
at FVTPL.
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ERGMITREE)FRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCQOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Financial liabilities - continued

Conditions for classifying financial
liabilities as held for trading are largely
similar as the conditions for classifying
financial assets as held for trading.

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKEFRS 9 permits the entire contract to
be designated as at FVTPL.
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ERSRMER(ERERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement -~ continued

Financial liabilities - continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities including loan payable,
debt securities issued, financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements, accounts
payables, amounts due to group companies
and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, Definition of
effective interest is detailed above and
interest expense on financial liabilities is
recognised on an effective interest basis in
profit or loss.

Interests in consolidated investment funds
attributable to other holders

A financial instrument that gives the
holder the right to put it back to the issuer
for cash or another financial asset (a
'puttable instrument') is a financial
liability. The financial instrument is a
financial liability even when the amount of
cash or other financial assets is determined
on the basis that has the potential to
increase or decrease. The existence of an
option for the holder to put the instrument
back to the issuer for cash or another
financial asset means that the puttable
instrument meets the definition of a
financial liability.
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EREMEREBERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. HEEBEAENRNEER e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (S A -

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

GEEELeE A6 - H

(iiy Classification and subsequent

() TEHEHEEE-E

measurement - continued

Interests in consolidated investment funds
attributable to other holders - continued

Net assets attributable to other holders of
interests in consolidated investment funds
are determined based on the attributable
shares or units of the residual assets of the
consolidated investment fund after
deducting the consolidated investment
fund's other liabilities, The holders have
the right to put their attributable shares to
the fund for cash with no cause.

As at year end, such financial liability of
net assets attributable to other holders of
interests in consolidated investment funds
is presented as "financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss" in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

In the case of acquisition or disposals of
such interests in consolidated investment
funds, any difference between the
acquisition cost or sale price of these
interests and the carrying value of these
interests is recognised in profit or loss.
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ERSMIEREEERLA

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iti) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial
asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of
the asset {or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) and (ii) a
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI in respect of debt
instrument is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in
OCI in respect of equity instruments
designated as at FVTOCI is not recognised
in profit or loss on derecognition of such
instruments. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by
the Group is recognised as a separate asset
or liability.
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EREMBEREB)BIRAT
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. EFEUBRRNGNEER E et
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL s E - i

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iii) Derecognition - continued
Financial assets - continued

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised on its
consolidated statement of financial
position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets. In such cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are securities
lending and sale-and-repurchase
transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a
concurrent total rate of return swap on the
transferred assets, the transaction is
accounted for as a secured financing
transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase
transactions, because the Group retains all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither
retains nor transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of a
financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to
which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. HEEMBRHRAGNEEREREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (s E -
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued GG ELEEEHE - #

(ili) Derecognition - continued (iil) #%1EWEER - 4
Financial assets - continued A E -
In certain transactions, the Group retains EEFAREHP, AEFHSEHEY OE
the obligation to service the transferred BeahgERMEEBERNE.
financial asset for a fee. The transferred TUERE 8 75 A B AR I RS e
asset is derecognised if it meets the e g 2 A B g
derecognition criteria. An asset or liability N ltf”“ ﬁljﬂ&ﬁ% %ME,?H%%

& AT (A ) BUR A B AT IR

is recognised for the servicing contract if
the servicing fee is more than adequate

FBEKF(RR), RISTHRES

(asset) or is less than adequate (liability) HFERMEMEERAE.

for performing the servicing.

Financial liabilities EHERF

The Group derecognises financial liabilities AEFERLAER 2 TR
when, and only when, the Group's . ERsEEt/EIMIS AR IETER SR
obligations are discharged, cancelled or B, DO SEAEE
have expired. The difference between the T B B A R A 2 5

carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

R FERR.
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EREMIEREB)FIRA T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iv) Modifications of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors. -
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are
substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10
per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial asset, after
reducing gross carrying amount that has
been written off.

If the cash flows are substantially different,
then the contractual rights to cash flows
from the original financial asset are deemed
to have expired. In this case, the original
financial asset is derecognised (see (ii1))
and a new financial asset is recognised at
fair value.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iv) Modifications of financial assets and
financial liabilities - continued

Financial assets - continued

If the cash flows of the modified asset
carried at amortised cost are not
substantially different, then the
modification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this
case, the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a
modification gain or loss in profit or loss.
If such a modification is carried out
because of financial difficulties of the
borrower, then the gain or loss is presented
together with impairment losses. In other
cases, it is presented as other income.

Financial liabilities

The related assessment on whether a
modification is substantial is similar to that
of financial asset. If modification is
substantial, the original financial liability is
derecognised and a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in profit
or loss.
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ERERMER(EE)RRAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(v) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a
net basis only when permitted under
HKFRS, or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions such
as in the Group's trading activity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the ehd of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash
flow hedge accounting, in which case the
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective
hedge is recognised in other comprehensive
income. A derivative is presented as a non-
current asset or a non-current liability if the
remaining maturity of the instrument is more
than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or
settled within 12 months except for those
classified held for trading. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as
hedging instruments in cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the
Group documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions, Furthermore, at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk.

Assessment of hedging relationship and
effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group
considers whether the hedging instrument is
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, which is when the hedging
relationships meet all of the following hedge
effectiveness requirements:

- there is an economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument;

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the
value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is
the same as that resulting from the quantity
of the hedged item that the Group actually
hedges and the quantity of the hedging
instrument that the entity actually vses to
hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- confinued

Hedging - continued

Assessment of hedging relationship and
effectiveness - continued

If a hedging relationship no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting (including when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, but the hedged
forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the
amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and upon which it is recognised removed
or reclassified from equity in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to take place, the amount that
has been accumulated in the hedging reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives and other qualifying hedging
instruments that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited
to the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedged item from inception of the hedge. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is
included in the 'other gains and losses' line item.
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ERGUMBEREE)FRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued
Hedging - continued
Cash flow hedges - continued

Amounts previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that
some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash

flow hedging reserve will not be recovered
the future, that amount is immediately
reclassified to profit or loss.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting
prospectively only when the hedging

in

relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the

qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if

applicable). This includes instances when the
hedgin instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting
can either affect a hedging relationship in its
entirety or only a part of it (in which case hedge
accounting continues for the remainder of the

hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity at that time remains in equity and

15

recognised when the profit or loss is impacted by

the forecast transactions.

When a forecast transaction is no longer

expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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ERSRZREEERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS QF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fixed assets

The following properties held for own use are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation:

- Self-occupied land and buildings

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the
properties revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows;

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to profit or loss to the extent that
a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to
profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.
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ERSMRR(EEERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fixed assets - continued
Other items of plant and equipment

Other items of fixed assets including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying fixed
assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture, fixture, Shorter of lease
and equipment termor 2 - 3
years
Motor car 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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ERGBRR(EEERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
- continued

Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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EREMEREBERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets (other than goodwill
- continued

Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure - continued

Subsequent costs and qualifying development
expenditure incurred after the completion of a
system are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs and other
subsequent expenditure are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or losson a
straight-line basis over the assets' estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the
date they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows;
- Computer software 3 - 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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EROIB (W) ERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets {(other than goodwill)

- continued

Amortisation - continued

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

The following intangible asset is assessed to
have indefinite useful life:

Trading rights

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(M)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs") on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and deposits, bank
balances held on behalf of customers,
accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables and financial assets held

under resale agreements, which are held

for collection of contractual cash flows
that represents solely payments of
principal and interest); and
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

- continued

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

The Group considers that there shall be no
loss allowance for ECL on loan
commitment given the rights held by the
Group in cancelling the commitment at its
sole discretion.

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments and equity instrument
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to
the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses of financial assets. Credit
losses are measured as the present value
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERERER(EE)F R

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

- continued

®

Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Measurement of ECLs - continued

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for fee receivable are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments), the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-
month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)HIRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on
the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group also considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument's
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

- existing or forecast changes in the
business, financial and economic
conditions that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to
meet its obligation to the Group;
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERERERGEBFRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(1)  Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Significant increases in credit visk
- continued

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations; and

- when financial instrument is having
past due exceeding threhsold as defined
in respective policies of the Group.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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HUATAI FINANCIATL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMBER(EBERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(®

Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Definition of Default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by the Group).

Credit-impaired asset

Interest income recognised on financial
assets is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ERemEREEARRAE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. e

M RCHM BB R E AR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B B -

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets EEEEMEERE - 8

- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () ERTAENEEERE -8
- continued

Credit-impaired asset - continued

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments,

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- substantial shortfall of the loan balance
versus the collateral held by the Group
while there is no concrete repayment

_plan to reduce the shortfall;

- the lender, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to
the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- the disappearance of an active market

for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMBEREB)BRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(®

Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Key parameters for expected credit losses

Depending on whether the credit risk is
significantly increased, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
or lifetime expected credit losses. The key
parameters for measuring expected credit
losses for financial assets other than fee
receivable, include the probability of
default ("PD"), loss given default ("LGD™)
and exposure at default ("EAD"). The
Group considers the quantitative analysis of
historical data (such as the credit rating of
counter parties, ways of guarantee, and the
category of collateral, etc.) and forward-
looking information, to establish a model of
PD, L.GD, and EAD.

Methods that is used in the caleulation of
expected credit losses

The Group considers PD/LGD impact on
measuring expected credit losses:

- PDis an estimate of the likelihood that
a borrower will be unable to meet its
debt obligations over the future 12
months or the whole remaining
lifetime. The Group estimates PD
based on the historical default data,
internal and external credit ratings and
forward-looking information, etc.

— 151 -

AR RN EERER G
HHRER - &

ERBEHRNE ERE -

(i) ST AEMEEEE-H

TG BRI 2

FEENBERAGRERERSE
WU kRS ERECERE, &
RHERARR 1288 AEEEST
AT EREBRTEZSRTIA
HOIRR SR . B 2 F REUSCRR 3R DA
SRR E M TEAME BIEHERE
HIMH2HEFENTE. B8
REBEAEAREMGHO. AEEER
B St BE (I BB FRPR.
BRI ARSI RERE) HER
T RAREER, BB
., OEMIRRE RO M O
.

TR B RAT 0%

IR F R AR (PD)&AYHR
K& (LGD) H R H S RET

st

- EAINEE (PD) RIBERNIER
% 12 8 B s 7E B AR&R 77 45
W, BEBSFREEASEHNT
REME. AEEEE AR LiEAVEL
1. AEESNTETHRELS. BT
MEtE(E B &R R GEHEAAM
#

- 63 -




HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ER SR (EE) A IRA T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i} Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Methods that is used in the calculation of
expected credit losses - continued

- LGD is the estimated share of the
exposure at default that is lost when a
borrower defaults. LGD varies
depending on the category of
counterparties, ways and priority of
recourse, and the category of collateral.
LGD is the percentage of loss when
default occurs;

- EAD is an estimation of the extent to
which the Group may be exposed to a
counterparty in the event of the
counterparty’'s default in the future 12
months or the whole remaining
lifetime;

- Forward-looking information, both the
assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk and calculation of expected
credit losses include forward-looking
information. The Group identifies the
key economic factors affecting credit
risk and the expected credit losses of
different kinds of business based on
historical data analysis. The Group
forecasts economic factors periodically
and applies expert judgements to
determine the impact of forward-
looking information on PD, etc.

For margin loan, the Group make monthly
assessment on the borrower's credit risk
based on available information including
collateral maintenance ratio, concentration
ratio and overdue status.
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HUATAT FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGHIBEREBFRAA

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

- intangible assets; and

- right-of-use assets.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREFE)ARAH

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

- continued

(i) Impairment of other assets - continued

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. ﬁ%%ﬁa‘i‘%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁjc@%
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL s -

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of agsets
- continued

(i) Impairment of other assets - continued
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

— 155 -

EE SR G E R -

(i) FAhEERIRE - 5

OB E R

ERERFBREEERAR
BRESHEERETIRE £&E

W, IRIEESRE SRR T
. BIREEE BT FER I
EEETERSER, kRl
AR EZRGEEBL (5
AR BN BT T A AV ERTE
S8, REBTHPIEDZEA
(FEZAH B Ar) A& 2 B ER
H&%H: BEEMRmMEES
B B EE R ATFER
EHERRAE (REETE) BEfE
BER R I EAE (ke

e

[ A 4R

4N R DA 52 AT WACIE) 3R A4
AR IR IEm K%L, HE
B EGREEHEE. frEE
FIBRERHE LT E IR A
R EMARESRTECEE
MEERTEHEAR. FEE

KB E R R MR R N
WEFABEAF.
-67 -




HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREGREBR(EBFRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
when the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses as determined below:

The loss allowance of accounts receivable from
margin clients is measured at 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

The loss allowance of fee receivable is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which are
those losses that are expected to occur over the
expected life. The loss allowance is estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with
any changes recognised as an impairment loss or
reversal in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of accounts
and other receivables through a loss allowance
account,
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ERGRUER(EFB)FRAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Accounts and other receivables - continued

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or
other receivables is written off (either partially or
in full} to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ERGMEREFE)ERAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Emplovee benefits

(1)

(if)

(iii)

Employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company granted shares to its
employees. The fair value of share awards
granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share based payment reserve
within equity measured. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the stock price
of Huatai Securities Co., Ltd, the ultimate
holding company of the Company, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the awards were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the awards
will vest.

— 158 -

i
e

P RR A m WEE R E R G

HERER - H

{& & FE 7

@

(i)

(iii)

{8 8RR A E AR AR BR
L2

e, FEES. FHER. R
T HFGRRET BRI AR R ¥
1A A FE IR R AR LA R IR ES 1Y
FRENRRT. IRIEEFRDES
HEERERNRE, AlERK
BeURET R,

BEIBAEA

BPARAE € 70 A ST 7R T ALK
A RO R SRR 1
SRR R E R R (B E
E R,

L An R B By S A

EREBERERRTRE. #7F
SRR A FERRERR
TR, WHEEENGHE. AT
HERTFHAEHALFAR&ER
KEEREFROTRAT R
SRR, WHERTERN
AR . MREREGFE

B Rt e AR A R Y
R, 7EERBBIRA R A
&, RFROEPLAFERSE
BB,

-70 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREMEREB)FRAE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. SFEMBHRFENERNEENERES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Bs(=m - 4
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Employee benefits - continued fREEF - &

(iv) Long Services Payment ("LSP") (iv) RHR%S
The Group operates in Hong Kong and is AEBEFIBREETE, BEE
obliged to pay LSP to employees under R EEFRETHETFERT
certain circumstances as specified in the EMREEYMNERRRES. EN
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The B[iﬁ% LB—IEREEFSE, &

LSP is a defined benefit plan and the Group
recognises the past service cost by

REERF A2 B A BB MARHR

estimating the present value of LSP with a WA & R BB AR RE R 1B 5 RS
number of parameters and assumptions RS, WA REIRES S ) E B
with change of the LSP recognised as part RAFEREREM T HER
of the staff cost in the consolidated & T RRAS R — & 4.

statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Remuneration for key management B2 2024 5 12 A 31 HIEFE,
personnel of the Group for the year ended AEETESE A BT, 8
31 December 2024, including amounts paid X AHEA A B EE G HIE
to Company's directors, amounted to " — Ty
HK$15,019,832 (2023: HK$20,742,274). f) ;‘51,20;3;8;3)75(2023 e B
Income tax 8%
Income tax expense represents the sum of current BB B ST e AR HARIE ST S R IR iE AR IE
and deferred income tax expenses. S 4B R,
The tax currently payable is based on taxable ZEAEAT I TR N ERE RS E
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from B, RS EERR R R
profit/(loss) before tax because of income or A, EEERLEREEEERHRY
expense that are taxable or deductible in other U NER B 3 b AR A SR R AL > 18

years and items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Group's liability for current tax H. AREZEABIRRFRARRG

is calculated using tax rates that have been WK EARH B HARA TR AT R
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Income tax - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are aftributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the
lease liabilities, and the related assets separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit.

—160 —

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ERGREREBHRAF

ARE B ERCR A B N B R
BURER -8

FiisHi - &

# T R ERBIERE AR A A R
HRENAELHWIBEENEH, £H
HAMERFANGATRERERAEER
ENAE R,

HRUFABERARNAER S, £F
AFEEERIERISE 12 RNERERR
MEARAAMEE. SEEURTRE
BUS A R IR AT R E e i 2 R 50 B
METBHRAMR, MRHHEE S EHEEN
BIEFFRIEE, WHTH BHRER
Mz RERBLERFRAR.

R AU BT RBRNEER
A B IRHE{E SR LA SRR AL R AR
A B ER.

-72 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGMEREB)ERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Income tax - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the same
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Income tax - continued

Current/deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxation entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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EREMIERERRRAT

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. GEUMBEHRRNERHERELEAEET
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BfE e - i
STATEMENTS AND MATERJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Revenue from contract with customers REHREEEHWA

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a AEEFEEEE)TRBEN BIETHET
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when N, BN EUG B A B BN R
"control" of the services underlying the particular B (R BBAERTE, KEER
performance obligation is transferred to the TR A

customer. i :

A performance obligation represents a good and BB IEESEE S EREE— RSk
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is AR A BB R R R S (B B SRR
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services BARURTE— D),

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is PR R, Wi R L "F.ﬁ. H—
recognised over time by reference to the progress TERERE, B N ErigiBsc& v e 8RR
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant 407 25 T4 1 3 1 D T B P S e

performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and - REFHBELAR, ZERABIREGIHE
consumes the benefits provided by the AL BRI H BRFE
Group's performance as the Group performs;

- the Group's performance creates or enhances - FEBBEAEATHEEAE T 'E,
an asset that the customer controls as the T 558 2 B9 5 BE AR & 4 i his
Group performs; or BRBNEEL, o

- the Group's performance does not create an - ZK%E%EH&EEE%ZK%%_E
asset with an alternative use to the Group and ¥RgWEE, AAKEHETA
the Group has an enforceable right to 1 E B AR IE R A v $ATHY
payment for performance completed to date. REF

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in FHI, WASEEZFESBEREN

time when the customer obtains control of the Pk SR,

distinct service.
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ERSRER(EE)ERAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers
- continued

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to a contract are accounted for and presented on
a net basis.

Description of the Group's performance
obligations of main source of income under the
scope of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

(i) Brokerage and commission income

The Group provides broking and dealing
services in securities and other products
such as bonds. Commission income is
recognised af a point in time on the
execution date of the trades at a certain
percentage of the transaction value of the
trades executed or at a fixed amount.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers

- continued

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Handling fee income

The Group provides handling services and
platform services. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is executed
and service is completed.

Placing and underwriting commission

The Group provides placing, sponsoring
and underwriting services to customers for
their fund raising activities in capital
markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, sponsoring or
underwriting activities are completed.
Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a
point in time.

Financial management income

The Group provides asset management
services. The fee arrangements are based
on a percentage applied to customers' assets
under management or an agreed fee. The
performance obligation is satisfied over
time because the customer is receiving and
consuming the benefits as they are provided
by the Group.

Advisory fee income

The Group provides financial advisory
services. Fee income is recognised when
the transaction is executed and service is
completed.
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EREUBEREBERAE

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers
- continued

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount,

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present
at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Financial assets held under resale and sold under
repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements
are transactions where the Group acquires
financial assets which will be resold at a
predetermined price at a future date under resale
agreements. Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements are transactions where
the Group sells financial assets which will be
repurchased at a predetermined price at a future
date under repurchase agreements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- confinued

Financial assets held under resale and sold
under repurchase agreements - continued

The cash advanced or received is recognised as
amounts held under resale or sold under
repurchase agreements in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Assets held
under resale agreements are recorded in
memorandum accounts as off-balance sheet
items. Assets sold under repurchase agreements
continue to be recognised in consolidated the
statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale
consideration, and that between the sale and
repurchase consideration, is amortised over the
period of the respective transaction using the
effective interest method and is included in
interest income and interest expenses
respectively.

Lease
(i) Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on
or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.
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EREUEREFHEFRLF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued
Lease - continued

(ii} The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components
of a contract

The Group applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

- the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. They
are grouped under Fixed Asset and
categorised as "Right-of-use assets".

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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ERAREREEERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued
(il) The Group as a lessee - continued
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments relevant to the Group
include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

—169 —

REMBRERNRMEERE R
BHRER -4

M-
(i) FAEEERAEA-E
BB R EE

EANTRIBHEZEERIBEE
BT IRE HERIE 0 SRRV B
RAFERE. RIUNAHERREE A
FEETHIFAR, FRRSEI
MEMK, WERIATAEREN
s .

HEEE

EHERGRA, AEEERRE
H AR AR B AT BB MERR

AFEREAMS. A EHEEMNRR
B, wnfiRaeHE e R EREH

xR, FEERBENGHAEMEA
BB R E,

B E AR E B

- EEMAZFEHEEERE N
BREWEREEEE; X

T Lok NCuLia e
o S 7 (4 LE RO

- 81 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued
(ii} The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities - continued

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases
increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to
reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the Group
remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification,
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ERERMZREB)ERAF
3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. HEMBRRNRMEERENE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEER -E
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued
Lease - continued FAE -4
(i) The Group as a lessee - continued (i) FEBERHAA-H
Lease modifications - continued FHEDNE - i
The Group accounts for the remeasurement AEERBIREIHRERAEEEE
of lease liabilities by making corresponding ITHIERR, DU E RS
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use EEEE., SBMBNeNRS
asset, When the modified contract contains — (5 S M AR B AR AT 4
— pi B ™

one or more additional lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the

B, FEERRIAE AR

modified contract to each lease component RS EBEN, MESENEA
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price WA RSB 43 R 2 R AR A AT
of the lease component. The associated 4r. HERERR EE A A A IE
non-lease components are included in the HFH & &4y,
respective lease components.
Translation of foreign currencies ShRE
Foreign currency transactions during the year are ENPIIMEAE B AT S H S R
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at B, DA AEAM RS EREER
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and BRI AR R IRE, BAR
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are EEIE 2 R,

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are LR SRR ERMEE RS EERA
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign BREEXSHYIRERRE, T5H
currency are translated using the foreign AV A M B
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. BIE B, DIAMNE & B LA T

The transaction date is the date on which the e o s k|t A 5T
Group initially recognises such non-monetary SURRHIAR S S R E S A R R A FE

assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and HAMSEERRE.
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that

are stated at fair value are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.
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EREMERER)ERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Translation of foreign currencies - continued

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the spot
rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

- For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the "Foreign
exchange gain/(loss)" line item (note 6) as
part of the "Other income";

- For financial assets measured at FVTPL that
are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the "net gain on
financial assets measured at fair value" line
item (note 5) as part of the "revenue".
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EREMBER(EB)ERAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Translation of foreign currencies - continued

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss in the
“Exchange gain/(loss)" line item (note 6) as part
of the "Other income" in respect of financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. For those which are
designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge
of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the spot
rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at
FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms
part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Borrowing costs - continued

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete,

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person's family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(1i1) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others); or

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
ather entity is a member); or
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ERGRBREEERAT

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Related parties - continued

(b)

- continued

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party; or

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a); or

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group

of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent
company.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EESHHBEGHHAEEEY TE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actnal results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised-in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of level 3 unlisted financial
instruments (which classification is based
on the accounting policies as disclosed in
note 3 above) are significantly affected by
the combination of valuation
methodologies employed, the parameters
used and, if required, the related
comparable companies chosen. The
valuation methodologies, key assumptions
and the source of parameters adopted by
the Group are discussed in note 37.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4, BEEgFAETAMEAEEHZTE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5B - 4
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty et A EE AR - 45

- continued

(ii) Impairment allowances of financial assets (i) F=FEEREREERERE
classified as stage 3
The Group uses various models and AEBE PG TERE B EERE
assumptions in estimating ECL. & EER R RR. ANEERE
Judgement is applied in identifying the TERESENBHEER, ME
most appropriate model for each type of A AE T {55 PR M ER (R B 1

asset, as well as for determining the

assumptions used in these models, FLFn = ZERENH A B B RIS

including assumptions that relate to key SEFIFIHR
drivers of credif risk.

In assessing the lifetime ECL on individual EF AR EASE=MEREHE
credit-impairment financial assets classified {E&RE E B EEEETERE
as stage 3, tl;e G;oup t1;:=;rformed tlllw | HiEian, ASERBASEEK
assessment based on the Group's historica - O 47 EA M o

credit loss experience, adjusted for factors ﬁ;};i%ﬁ;ﬁ;&g;ﬁ
that are specific to the borrowers, general 1= Z’Tm CNPVTTIE A Y K E]
economic conditions at the reporting date RIS AR AR e BB B AR AR ARV
as well as the forecast of future conditions ROFRAL, BRERFIE. FEH
with significant judgement involved. The 7R 2B 2 P IR 5 B E
Group also reviews the value of the BHUEERE. ARhErrRkE
collateral received from the customers in LB B A E R RS S By v B
determining the impairment. The e AZER, DR/ I8 SefE st
methodology and assumptions used for H T 48 e AT B S A 32

estimating both the amount and timing of

future cash flows are reviewed regularly to #.

reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

Relevant information about ECL movement BoBERSREENTEHERE
on Stage 3 financial assets are disclosed in S SR FE R S A D R RE
note 20 of the financial statements. st 20 HIREE.
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EREAEHE (FB)VERAT

REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope
of HKFRS 15;
Brokerage and comumission income
Handling fee income
Placing and underwriting conunission
Financial management and advisory fee income

Income within the scope of HKFRS 9:

[nterest income calculated using the effective
interest method:
- margin clients
- cash clients and IPO financing

- debt securities and financial assets
- financial assets held under resale agreements

and securities borrowing and lending agreements

Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value

Net gain on joint venture measured at fair value
Dividend incoine from trading equities

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the Group's most contracts with
customers have original expected duration of

less than one year.

5. YA
WA HTanT

THMHRE
HRIZE 15 SRTEEM
EBESEHA:
BADR AN
- -1V ON
LR=R AL N
B ER R EEA

EE R SRR
# o SREIME MR
ERARIRFIREH2
FURIA:
-REBEEP
-RERFRER
LR RERE
-BERPREMOSHRE
-BMNEEEMRE
Ritr R

EATENESRT A
(RS HR 2l 19 4R

HATEGBCELS

FE R RSN
BB

The Group
s

2024 2023

HK$ HKS

HT BT
187,233,740 146,036,177
54,645,633 46,575,873
199,226,849 225,460,852
43,692,482 50,222,259
484,798,704 468,295,161

161,713,352 205,295,045
2,969,891 2,017,053

- 6,972,302

6,548,353 14,624,269
171,231,596 228,908,669
(919,481,919 626,351,641
(195,437,088)  (409,176,522)
37,103,838 62,795,234
(1,077,815,169) 279,970,353
(421,784,869) 977,174,183

FR2024 4 12 A 31 HRX 2023412 A 31

H, FEEREFRES &R RR

HRA—FUN.
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ERSHMBREB)FRAT

6. OTHER INCOME

Interest income from:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Authorized financial institutions
- Others

Foreign exchange {loss)/gain
Management fee income from fellow subsidiaries

Interest income from immediate holding company

Sundry income

7. STAFF COSTS

Salaries, bonus and allowances
Contribution to retirement schemes
Share-based payment expenses

6.

- 179 —

HAR A
The Group
S
2024 2023
HKS HKS
T T
F| B A
H S R A RR
ERhEE
- B SRS 178,926,939 85,398,506
- Hth 12,186,796 16,402,789
191,113,735 101,801,295
fE (IR A (184,303,115) 74,075,000
FREREMBAS
RIEERBA 1,088,170,372 744,624,014
HEEEERATR
FIRIA 2,488,724,074  2,011,355,524
FETRUCA 8,963,649 17,461,535
3,592,668,715 2,949,317,368
=N
The Group
FEE
2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
Fé&. BEMmE 1,212,801,644  1,150,425,771
BIRETBIHER 9,381,896 8,951,643
CLAR i BT
*HER 2,270,971 6,345,645
1,224,454,511  1,165,723,059

-91 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERLRIRR (EHEERAR

8.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on debt securities issued
Interest on inter-company loans and balances

Interest paid to brokers
Interest expense to banks
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest paid to clients
Others

PROVISION FOR/(REVERSAL OF)

9.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS AND OTHER

OPERATING EXPENSES

An analysis of provision for/(reversal of)
expected credit loss is as follows:

Provision for/(reversal of) expected credit loss on:
- Accounts receivable from margin clients
- Accounts receivable from cash clients
- Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

- Others

An analysis of other operating expenses is as

follows:

Legal and professional fee

IT and communication expenses

Marketing expenses
Others

— 180 —

il S A

B AT (R B RE5 A0 A B
AE H R4 e KB
AR RERFR
SATERITF B
BRERARHE
XATEFFE

ity

The Group
p:¥ L]

2024 2023

HKS$ HKS

& iy
1,309,699,007  1,142,240,949
694,793,904 749,070,783
48,334,313 46,447,298
41,544,045 44,597,947
4,603,311 6,954,148
668,317 2,202,924
14,006,261 4,548,522
2,113,649,158  1,996,062,571

TREA(E B4R B /()

EHMEE &R

TEH(E R Ia 8 /(R DR 2 i T -

The Group
HHH
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
BT T
TEHA (5 RS RIS/ ED):
- fRE & P IEM AR K 7,944,356 (6,353,129)
-REeEFEWIRR 43,835,568 -
- AT EZHhEE
g ARRI &R E - (110,011)
- HAih 19,371,081 (245,143)
71,151,005 (6,708,283)
HAEE BARN I T
The Group
A
2024 2023
HK$ HK$
oy T
EERMEERA 191,266,866 213,236,417
FEME BN 280,936,642 263,704,644
TG BT 104,635,024 156,553,383
Hik 206,653,920 281,633,000
783,492,452 915,127,444
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EFRERMEREBHRAF

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. THATESIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after METESIE 240 T 71 & 18
charging:
The Group
FHE
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
T B
Depreciation I
- property, plant and equipment -4, BETIRE 64,333,028 56,082,585
- right-of-use assets -{EHERE 87,448,624 87,448,624
Amortisation charge of intangible assets - BT AR SN 22,179,559 13,275,661
173,961,211 156,806,870
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FRIEBIE
(a) Taxation charged to profit or loss (a) FIRREBIANRIES.
represents:
The Group
LM
2024 2023
HKS HKS
Cuirent tax - income tax AIBRTH - BFTAR
Provision for the year - Hong Kong FEFTBE - B 31,406,626 6,925,272
Deferred tax R IEARLTH
Origination and reversal of temporary differences WF e B A A A A R 600,000 1,067,571
Total tax expense RIAR &G 32,006,626 7,992,843
The provision for Hong Kong Profits 2024 FEFIEFH SR DA E NG E
Tax for 2024 is calculated at 16.5% FEZFRIBSFI LLA 2R 16.5% (2023:
(2023: 16.5%) of the estimated 16.5%) B,
assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is FEAHN B A T $ AR A B 23 1@ A9 B
charged at the appropriate current rates HAFR 2R A ANFRIE,
of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.
-03.
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ERGMEREE)FRAT

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - continued

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on {loss)/profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Fax effect of utilisation of unused

tax losses

Actual tax expense

- 182 —

11.

FUTRFSL - 45

(b) BRI G SRR AR
B3R,

The Group
AU
2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
ki ] (1,195,824,491) (300,520,110)
HERIEAR B E fhE R
MR E AR IR
bEe R F A ] (75,537.104) 35,984,249
AT IR 3L A TR TR
- 182,025,342 103,914,605
THAEH I A MR IE
R (74,469.911) (130,849,371)
ERCIEIIEER G E
FEIRAI TR & 162,613 197.743
FIF A AE FH WHIRRA%
RIRIFRAE (174.314) (1,254,383)
TERERLIFGA 32,006,626 7,992,843
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ERSTE R (EE)FRA T

12.  FIXED ASSETS

The Group

Cast or valuation:

At ] Janwary 2023

Additions

Disposals

Disposal of interest in
a subsidiary

Write off’

Deficit on revaluation

At 31 December 2023

Representing;
Cost
Valuation - 2023

At 1 January 2024
Additions

Disposals

Deficit on revaluation

At 31 December 2024

Representing:
Cost
Valuation - 2024

Accumulated
depreciation:

At | January 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

Disposal of interest in
a subsidiary

Write off’

At 31 December 2023
At 1 January 2024

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2024

Net book value:
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

A
20235 1A1H
bk 4

%
HHEFAA R A8 2 M2

ey

HfGiR
2023024310
e

fpi:S
{48 - 2023 42

B204EIALE
R

3 3

MR

20244128318
3

i

fi{lf - 2024 &=
Btk
R2023E 1A LH
AR

R

AR A8 2 A
#3n

20234FE 12 A 31A
R204E1A1H

AT
KLY

WH20242E12 A3 E

PR P A s
o412 B31A

235124 00H

12. BEEEE

A

Land and
buildings held
by own use Furniture,
camried fixtures and Right-of-use
at revalued amounts Motor car equipment assets Total
LA
AlEpEE A A, BE (Note 14)
LRI RY bisc) P kil pedickiA s o fry|
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
G G T #n 75
13,225,000 2,208,898 240,537,397 347,427,617 603,398,912
- - 71,123,587 184,630,143 255,753,730
- - (13,826,044) - (13,826,044)
- - (324,662) - (324,662)
- - - {175,864,759) (175,864,759
(1,250,000} - - - (1,250,000)
11,975,000 2,208,858 297,510,278 356,193,001 667,887,177
- 2,208,898 297,510,278 356,193,001 655,912,177
11,975,000 - - ' - 11,975,000
11,975,000 2,208,898 297,510,278 356,193,001 667,887,177
- - 35,780,269 - 15,780,269
- (745,000) {5,955,044) - (6,700,044)
(600,000) - - - (600,000)
11,375,000 1,463,898 327,335,503 356,193,001 696,367,402
- 1,463.898 327,335,503 356,193,001 684,992,402
11,375,000 - - - 11,375,000
- 1,434,550 155,284,349 229,386,639 386,105.538
- 273,299 55,809,286 87.448,624 143,531,209
- - (13.826,044) - (13,826,044)
- - (164,717) - (164,717)
- - - (175.864,759) (175.864.759)
- 1,707,849 197,102,874 140,970.504 339,781,227
- 1,707,849 197,102,874 140,970,504 339,781.227
- 273,299 64,059,729 87,448,624 151,781,652
- (745.000) (5,953.269) - (6,698,269)
- 1,236,148 255,209,334 228,419,128 484,864,610
11,375,000 227,750 72,126,169 £27,773.873 211,502,792
11,975,000 501,049 100,407,404 215,222,497 328,105,950
-05-
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12. FIXED ASSETS - continued 12. BEEEE-H
Fair value measurement of properties YER AN EEE
Fair value hierarchy AT E B

Fair value measuremnents as at
31 December 2024 categotised into
J2024F 2 A0AE
BRE LT R AT S B

Fair value at

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A 2024 4
128 31 HH
el o BE Ho R BIESE
HKS HK$ HKS HKS
T HEIT HETE #IT
Recurring fair value it ok Baliiniy V)
measurement ATHE
Self-occupied land and buildings B S thRER RS 11,375,000 - 11,375,000
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
203 FE 12 NE
GRKS UL T B AR A T4 51 R
Fair value at
31 December 2023 Level | Level 2 Level 3
B 2023 4
12 A 31 Al
AP W1EE Bk I
HKS HKS$ HKS HK$
HETT HEIT W HETE
Recurring fair value B ERETR R
measurement A
Self-occupied land and buildings SRR e &) 11.975.000 - 11,975,000
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there HE 20245 1231 BILEE, £%F
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, —HE — B M EHB AR
or transfers into or qut of Level .3 (2023: Nil). R, FEETAFEBANE=SS
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers SREAEZBEEE03 E: £

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

I S B T R TE A T B AR T
R RS B AL A B

.

All of the Group's self-occupied land and AEBFAENBE sy mn
buildings were revalued as at 31 December 2024, 20245 12 A 31 BT EMH.
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 BB AL E R
Jfair value measurements FIBN B

The fair value of properties held for own use IR EHBREEE FER A PE,
located in Hong Kong is determined using BT E A B AR AT IS
market comparison approach by reference to WETIESE, ShOREa R
recent sales price of comparable properties on a HR4G 5 R AR

price per square foot basis using market data
which is publicly available.

-06 -
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EXReMEREHERLHE

13.

14.

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits with the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("SEHK");
- Compensation fund
- Fidelity fund
- Stamp duty

Deposits with the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Corporation
{"HKSCC":
- Admission fee
- Default fund
- Mainland security deposit
- Mainland settlement deposit

Deposits with the HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited
("HKCC"):
- Reserve fund
- Margin deposit

Deposits with the SEHK Options Clearing House Limited
("SEOCH"):
- Reserve fund
- Margin deposit with Derivatives Clearing and Settlement
Systems

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-
use assets by class of underlying asset is as
follows:

Properties leased for own use, carried at
depreciated cost

13.

14.
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HAhg &=
The Group
FHEE
2024 2023
HKS HK$
HEIT #T
TR AR
- RS 50,000 50,000
- E{REEE 50,000 50,000
- EN7ER 500,000 500,000
600,000 600,000
BEPREEEHRAT
R84
-AEH 50,000 50,000
SRR ES 76,524,074 54,976,670
- NENEE IR & 7,574,111 10,385,651
- b HE TS 10,392,210 13,185,110
94,540,395 78,597,431
A EEE AT
BEss.
- tEEE 8,087,098 1,500,000
- [FiEE 22,401,000 3,893,556
30,488,098 5,393,556
FENEEETRES.
- GRS 4,278,403 12,618,753
- TR EREERTR
RIFREESE 21,506,041 41,082,802
25,784,444 53,701,555
151,412,937 138,292,542
eI

15 HE B SR W RO P B A A O BR
EFHE AT -

The Group
A

2024 2023

HK$ HK$

T BT

HEBRMYE,
T E AT 127,773,873 215,222 497
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14.

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued 14.

The analysis of expense items in relation to
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by
class
- properties leased for own use

Interest on lease liabilities

During the year, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$Nil (2023: HK$184,630,143).
This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments under new tenancy
agreerments.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out
in notes 22(c) and 24 respectively.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 15.

The following list contains the particulars of
principal subsidiaries of the Group as of

31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

fEFMERE -

B NBRMBETHNEREE O
W

The Group
TEH
2024 2023
HEKS$ HKS$
HARR R E BN E 5k
HERERENITEEA.:
- B BRAhE 87,448,624 87,448,624
HEARERHE 4,603,311 6,954,148

N, fHAREE E RGNS R T
(2023: &% 184,630,143 7T). &M
R ELET A B W AT R B AL BT 3K
R

AEHSMBABEAHEEAFNRIEE
S 43 BIFEBTEE 22(c)FN 24 3.

T B T A B B RE A,

TREFU 20244 12 B 31 Q& 2023 4
12 A 31 BAEENEEMBA RS
BIEXFSA, AEBFERONER
AEE.

Percentape of shares
Place of held by the Group
Name of companies incorporation Principal activities Registered and paid up capital pa AL B 5T 1
ACIEE ) SHA AL AL S FEE Cak RS8R Ik fip ez
2024 023 202 2023
Held directly by the Company
A B B
Huataj International Finance Limited British Virgin Notes issuer US$1.00 USs5$1.00 100% 100%
FEREEMFFRAA Islands BRI IM 1.00 %5 1.00 37T
TLRIHEE R Y
Pioneer Reward Limited British Virgin Bonds issuer US$1.00 US§1.00 100% 100%
Islands i RiT XM 1.00 35T 1.00 353
EBEHERE
Huatai International Financial Products British Virgin Structured products US$1.00 USs$L.o0 100% 100%
Limited Islands issuer 1.00 375 1.00 3¢
YRR EEHGPEAE T N
-08 -
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15.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The table above lists out the subsidiaries of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. At the end of the reporting
period, the Company has other subsidiaries that
are not material to the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars
of excessive length.

Transfer of a direct subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the

Company was the direct holding company of

Huatai International Private Equity Investment

Management Limited (previously known as

Huatai HK Investment (Cayman) Limited) ("the

Transferee").

On 27 March 2023 ("the date of transfer"), the

Company transferred all its shares of the
Transferee to Huatai International Financial
Holdings Company Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$84,996,682.

On the date of transfer, all net assets of the
transferee were eliminated from the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In addition, the following investment funds are

consolidated into consolidated financial
statements of the Group. These consolidated
investment funds are not body corporates and

therefore do not have any registered or paid-up

register capital. All the below-mentioned
interest in consolidated investment funds are
held indirectly by the Company.

Place of
incorporation

£ [T AR S S

Nzme of funds
PR i

Huatai International Greater Bay
Area Investment Fund I, L.P.

Cayman Isiands

M2%E

Huatai Special Opportunities Fund 1, Cayman Islands
LP [UE-35 %

Huatai Value Tnvestment Fund L.P. Cayman Islands

3o 35
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15.

Principal activities

EERER
Investinent holding
b derding

I[nvestinent holding

Bisu gty

Investment holding
B

AR 2 B IR - A8

ERIIMAAFEERATEREAEE
EERRELAREMNEAR. RREH
K, FATFHMBEARERFALFER
MMBAF. AAFEERS, MIIHKL
B AR 2 E, HERIBBRITR.

WEE BB AT

BE 2022 4 12 A 31 HIEEE, FAF
#% Huatai International Private Equity
Investment Management Limited
(previously known as Huatai HK Investment

(Cayman) Limited)( [ %327 | I EEE
BEAF,

F2023FE3 A 278, ([EEH]), &
A E) G B W AR S B AR A
ARBHEEERATEZBESMITE
FRAF, FHEBE/BY 84,996,682 Tt.

RERN, BTN SEESESN

Bt DT HEEEHAREERNESH
BlE. BRESREESWIFRRE
%, Fir eSS EmAEAR. TR
EHEEERAEEER N MA R AR
EFA .

Percentage of net assets held

by the Group
Net asset value B A SRR R B
i AR
2024 2023 2024 2023
US$47,980,356 U55847.960.557 100% 100%
47,980,356 3T 47,960,557 $#70
US$94,976,947 U55$183,275.596 99.65% 99.65%
94,976,947 7% 183,275,596 375
US514,809,677 US$67.203.516 99.65% 99.65%
14,809,677 £ 7T 67,203,516 %7T
-09 .



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EReMEREFE)RRAH

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE 16. REBLEZER

The following list contains the particulars of AT P aFmEE 2024 F 12 B 31 A0

the joint venture as of 31 December 2024 and 2023 12 A HAEBKNFESESNE
31 December 2023. B

Percentage of interest

Name of company Place of incorporation held by the Group Principal activity
AR BEFER
NGIEZY ] FE AR AL AR A FEA L= FEXY
2024 2023
Huatai International Cayman Islands 40% 40% Investment holding
Greater Bay Area HEHS wEER

Investment Fund, L.P.

The directors considered that the Group's
interests in Huatai International Greater Bay
Area Investment Fund, L.P. shall be measured
at fair value through profit or loss instead of
applying equity method as the subsidiaries
holding these investments are investment
funds, with investments holding for short- to
medium-term and with actively monitored exit
plan. The subsidiaries' investments also form
part of a portfolio, which is monitored and
managed without distinguishing between
investments that qualify as joint ventures and
those that do not. There is no unfilled capital
commitment on the joint venture as at

31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023
respectively and the fair values represent the
maximum exposure on respective reporting
dates.

— 188 —

HHEE R, FEBER Huatai International
Greater Bay Area Investment Fund, L.P.F]
ERELUAREMESEBAEEFT AR
W, TAERRAEREE, EAFEHEESR
AHT AR AREES, AFEESR
ERENEPHRE, BREBEEN
BEET#. FARMRERBRREHE
N —8a, HERRHEESEITREM
B, TESFEEEHRGNRER
FeaaBBRANHRE. R2024E 121
31HK2023 12 A 31 H, &84
TR BITR A AN, HATFERRS
5 B ARy R B FR L

- 100 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMBREB)FRAF

16.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE
- continued

Summarised financial information of the
Group's joint venture, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a

16.

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the joint venture:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Equity

Reconciliation of carrying amounts

to the Group's interest in joint venture:
Carrying amount of joint venture as at I January
Capital injection

Changes in fair value of joint venture during the year
Dividend paid

Carrying amount of joint venture as at 31 December

— 189 —

REELE R - E
AEEESEMSENHMBEAS(ERBES
BUR = RIBITIE) UGS M IS REF
FRESHENRASTRIT:
The Group
%A |
2024 2023
HK$ HKS
EEAET MEN:
TREhE & 225,442,034 420,879,122
ERE&E - .
mERK -
ELi =t -
i 225,442,034 420,879,122
BHSERAEENRSSE
B At Fatgi
FEA¥MI1A1HZ 420,879,122 830,055,644
RE S
REEN - .
GFREECRATHESE  (195437,088) (409,176,522)
ot - .

AEAER12A31 B2
RRT&HR

225,442,034

420,879,122
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES) AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instrumenis
- Listed
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed
- Unlisted

Funds
- Listed

Others
- Convertible bonds
- Total return swaps
- Derivative assets (Note 18 (a))

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments
- Listed

Equity securities *
- Listed

Total return swaps
Structured notes

Interests in consolidated investment funds
attributable to other holders (note (1))

Derivative liabilities (Note 18 (a))

*  The balance represents short selling of listed equity

securities,

— 190 -

17. BAFEERDTARNEME Z/(&H)

The Group
HHEE
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
T BT
BOTHRIAN
ABRNERRE
HIFETR
-k 3,474,457,617 283,774,623
-dkET 518,398,173 2,187,928,261
3,992,855,790 2,471,702,384
HERS R
) 2,217,383,793 7,801,628,164
-3EETH 320,096,907 1,046,756,828
2,537 480,700 8,848,384,992
B
-k 1,638 201,547,452
HAk
- B[R 72,591,425 68,675,572
- WA E R 471,192,783 324,481,145
-fTETAEE
(FrH5E 18 (a)) 226,601,335 132,102,099
7,300,723,671  12,046,894,144
HATFEAEHE A
RS A
BT A
il (5,371,309,311)  (5,505,119,096)
FER RS *
) (54,497,359) (7,777,218)
W H i (1,068,391,382)  (1,461,679,648)
bl (15,208,469,524)  (25,726,740,049)
REfREES
EdEERREEA (P ERGY)  (3,012,603) {6,978,860)
FTETEAE
(FitsE 18 () (513,687,582) {202,393,505)
(22,219,367,761)  (32,910,688,376)
* MBBEARLETEHESNES.
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
- continued

Notes:

@

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss includes certain investment funds
that are consclidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
Classification of investments as detailed
above is based on investments by these
consolidated investment funds. The Group
had consolidated these investment funds
based on the criteria as set out in note 3
where the Group acted as an investment
manager and is also an investor. Based on
the assessment on those criteria, directors
of the Company concluded the Group is a
principal in respect of these investment
funds.

Third party interests held was classified as
a financial liability designated at fair value
through profit or loss based on the
accounting policy as set out in note 3. As
at 31 December 2024, interests held by the
third party interests amounted to
HX$3,012,603 (2023: HK$6,978,860).

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(2)

Fair value of derivatives

The following is a summary of each
significant type of derivatives, without
taking into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.

—191 -

17. #FAFEEREAN RO SRS E/(BE)

- 48

B &E -

() BAFESARENEHEETE
BETHAGEHBRRNREE
. LBFFEIINRESEREUZ
EHEEREESTFANIRERE
#, AEECREMEI RGNS
HRERNEES, KT AEEAZ
SHESMBEEEARTEE. |
BHRERGRTS, AATES
RAFEAAZERRESNER
A

TRIEPRE 3 BB &St BUR, £=
F RSSO R ARATES
BHEARNEMARE. B20245F12
A31H, =R FENEER
H#5#3,012,60370(20234F: ¥
6,978,8607T).

EEMTE
(a) TETEMAFE

THARBRRREBEBPHREE R
HRENATETRAEERAME.

-103 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMEREFR)FRAT

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

- continued

(a) Fair value of derivatives - continued

Curmrency derivatives
- Foreign exchange forward contracts

Interest rate swaps
Futures and options contracts

Warrants and CBBCs

HMHTETH
-ShEE R

R
MR EH
il g UG

—-192 —

18.

e TR - H

(a) RTETEKATE - 8

The Group
ST
024 2023
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE At HE Afit
HKS HK$ HKSE HKS$
(Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 17) (Mote 17)
(5 1 (M1 (EE 17 (HE17)
36.546.956 (36.546,957) 721.110 (18,231,948)
16,705,442 (258,640,002) 59,761,418 (59,706,831)
157,213,734 (134,410,361) 71,180,730 (90.275,053)
16,134,203 (84,080,262) 438,791 (34,179,673}
226,601,335 (513,687,582) 132,102,099 (202,393,505)
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EXReMERE®BFIRAF

19. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED  19. 44 IRMEBHREETEBR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Tax payable in the consolidated (a) S RRERITRIEMNIES.

statement of financial position represents:

The Group
i L
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
BT #
Provision for Profits Tax - Hong Kong FBmsE
- FiE 11,431,828 2,722,446

- 106 -
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19.

20.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

- continued

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy

set out in note 3, the Group had not

recognised deferred tax assets in respect

of cumulative tax losses of

HK$41,379,807 (2023: HK$41,450,727)
as at 31 December 2024 as it was not

probable that future taxable profits

against which the losses can be utilised

will be available in the relevant tax

jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislations

of the respective subsidiaries.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Advances to customers in margin financing
Accounts receivable from
- Cash and other clients
- Brokers and dealers
- Clearing houses
Fees and other receivables
Less: provision for expected credit losses:
- Advances to customers in margin financing
- Accounts receivable from cash and other clients
- Others

Analysed by the stages of allowance for ECLs
on advances to customers in margin financing:

Stage 1
Stape II
Stage [1I

Total

20.

— 197 -

A BRIRPT R TR -

(c) REERANEERIALE

RN E 3 TR ST EUR, A%
BR2024E 1231 HRE BT RR
THESRE41,379,8077C (2023:
#41,450,727 7T )RERR IR SEAR TR A
E, BRAR/RKAKAEFAME
AR IR RS 4R E A 7 AH B F vk E A
TP, RBEWEATNERTR
i, MIEEEAREAERE.

JEG BR R

IRAG ST PR S
bl
- R kA4bES
- HBEETE AR B T
PR B I
W FUNGER SRS
- DRRES PV B
- R R AAbFE S R
- H Ak

REBEE PR S
FUN SRR
PR A

R —

(42 o

BEE=

B

The Group
AR
2024 2023
HK$ HK$
Heg T
2,171,815,211 2,627,973,218
652,243,526 515,680,751
441,633,212 1,393,025,625
805,516,266 562,655,215
99,599,644 118,311,629
{46,638,967) (38,694,611)
{43,835,568) -
(62,413,595) {45,427,920)
4,017,919,732 5,133,523,907
800,106 589,291
8,786,844 25,775,102
37,052,017 12,330,218
46,638,967 38,694,611
- 109 -
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20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - continued

Movements in the allowance for ECLs that
have been recognised for advances to

customers in margin financing are as follows:

2024
As at 1 January 2024
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at | January 2024:
- Transfer from/to 12-month
ECL to/from lifetime ECL
- Net temeasurement of ECL
arising from transfer of stage
- Net remeasurement of ECL
without transfer of stage
- Repayments or derecognition
New lending ’

As at 31 December 2024

2023
As at 1 January 2023
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2023:
- Transfer from/to 12-month
ECL to/from lifetime ECL
- Net remeasurement of ECL
arising from transfer of stage
- Net remeasurement of ECL
without transfer of stage
- Repayments or derecognition
New lending

As at 31 December 2023

Allowance for ECLs in Stage I, Stage II and
Stage III that have been newly recognised for
account receivables from cash clients are
measured at nil, HK$6,770 and

20. FEVCRER - 8|

ERREEE RS LR TEAE
BERSEINT:

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
RSB — Pagt— FEBR=
RE1LEAN TR T2
Feade s iR BictULENC EEi) T sEA k]
HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS$
2024
W20 1818 589,201 25.775.102 12,330,218 18,694,611
HadgE1H1A
Werg A & T R A0 ¥ h.
- 38 12 18 B M TIRE R sR
WIR /=TSO E R SR 590,134 (1,444,958) 854,824
- BB RE B A 1Y
FWME AR 5 P H 771.78% {599,110) 23,984,759 24,157,438
- M MRS IWAE T M
TS AR E T AR A 107,544 (14,836,551) (183,225) (14,912,232)
BF 1582 31 (1,616,468) (1,516.032) (5.116) {3.137,616)
b UEE N 357,816 1,408,393 70,557 1.836,766
o4 gEI12F N A 800,106 8,786,844 37,052,017 46.638.967
2023
Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
B 7 PR =
#A128H K 74N 7EUN
Rl F iR Mk 1 Ul E FEEIR ot
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$
2023
B20B3EI1A1H 1,880,563 12,975,469 30,191,708 45,047,740
B2 1 A1H
FERR A Ao h T SR (3 s
- el 12 I8 A RIS FNME F 50
WS B/ BTN ERER (614,879) (1.124.865) 1,739,744 -
- RS NEE AT AR A2 8%
R B AU A IR 622,327 772,592 (254,835) 1,130.984
- Y JE PSRRI T i
TR SN0 30 AT AT 9.756 10.153.537 (19,365,174) (9,201,881)
- ERREE TR (1,616,468) {1,516,032) (5.116) (3,137.616)
Frias 307,992 4,514,401 23,991 4,846,384
B203F£12A31 0 589,201 25,775,102 12,330,218 38,694,611

HK $43,828,798 (2023: nil, nil and nil),

respectively.
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MRS R F IR MR R P B —

PREr — KPS ER = FRIB(E IR 48 0 B!

A1, 6,770 ¥EJT X 43,828,798 T
(2023 £E: &) .
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - continued

Margin loans due from margin clients are
current and repayable on demand. Margin
clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit
facilities for securities trading. The amount of
credit facilities granted to them is determined
by the discounted value of securities accepted
by the Group. At 31 December 2024, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral
in respect of the loans to margin clients was
approximately HK$10,986,178,542 (2023:
HK$16,975,838,230). No aging analysis is
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors, the
aging analysis is not meaningful in view of the
revolving nature of loans due from margin
clients.

Except for a total amount of HK$41,518,963
(2023: Nil) aged more than 30 days, accounts
receivable from cash and other clients that are
not settled after settlement dates at

31 December 2024 are current or aged within
30 days.

Accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers are current. These
represent pending trades arising from the
business of dealing in securities, which are
normally due within a few days after the trade
date.

Fee and other receivables are with settlement
terms which are determined in accordance
with contract terms. These receivables that are
overdue as at 31 December 2024 included
HK$7,498,946 (2023: HK$836,234) that are
181-3635 days past due; HK$61,675,316 (2023:
HK$45,009,802) that are more than 1 year
past due. The related estimated loss rate of
these receivables are 50% and 100% (2023:
50% and 100%) respectively.
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20.

FEUSCRRRK - 4

JEW R B &R F IR # a3k A R R 4%
ERMEIE. REEEFARAERUE
FEAMEES, DHBRETHENER
Mg, RTFESEEMESHERAER
BRI EEAREE. R2024E
12A 31 H, iAREEEFFZHER
BRI SE AT BT IR 4E3EN S
15 10,986,178,542 70 (2023 ££: R
16,975,838,230 70). HE LR AR OHT
MERRESEFNREBEERNER
HEMSUREE, WERHERSES
o

M & 2B AN 41,518,963 JT(2023: )2
HRESHEIR 30 R4h, BRIREEFNERR
#2024 42 12 A 31 H(RFBAEGERE Y
REEEN SR AN SRR EER 5 30
KA.

FEUSAE ST . A KA 5 T B 2 Bl
WER, EEXREHBEESRBNGE
HARZS, —BRZTHREHENE
.

B B At PN HR SR IR 45 B A PR 2 AR
BEREREE. B8R 20244E 12 A
31 HEsHIR s s IR B 4518 EA 181-365
TR HEHE 7,408,046 T6(2023 £E:
836,234 jT) K@ — DL EA
61,675,316 Ju(2023 4E: #5¥ 45,000,802
T0). 1B LE B RIRRIAE R M RTHR AR
B % 50%F0 100% (2023 £F:  50%5F
100%).
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21.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER  21.

RECEIVABLES

Non-current
Deposits

Current

Other receivables
Cash collateral paid
Deposits
Prepayments

Total

Except for the non-current deposits of
HK$30,339,543 (2023: HK$19,770,118), all
of the deposits, prepayments and other
receivables classified as current assets are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.
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e, FRAHRIEREAG R

The Group
FHEM

2024 2023

HK$ HKS$

T HIT
JeinEh
e 30,339,543 19,770,118
e
HAhBERGR 20,720,947 0,468,358
ofFEHRES 139,985,370 92,938,368
BE 1,210,034 11,911,830
TAfTEIA 15,536,712 24,228,567

177,453,063 138,547,153

e 207,792,606 158,317,271

M dE AR 30,339,543 TT(2023 4 #
# 19,770,118 JT)HIAEIR B & 56, BRER
AMBEENFRERE. BIRELE

i SRR TRET A A — S P Wi [l SRR R 2

.
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22. CASH AND DEPOSITS

(a) Cash and deposits comprise:

(b)

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash and cash equivalents

At the reporting date, the Group
maintained client trust monies of
HK$3,517,961,448 (2023:
HK$2,572,093,867) and none (2023:
Nil) in segregated bank accounts in
accordance with the provision of Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Client
Money) Rules ("Client Money Rules")
and Section 71 of the Hong Kong
Insurance Ordinance respectively. Client
monies were not included in the cash and
deposits of the Group.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

The following table details changes in
the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing
activities,

22. REMER

(a)

(b)

—-201 -

ReMEREHE.
The Group
2024 2023
HKS HK$
e T
RITFEERERE 2,599,293,548 2,794,266,488
HEMELEY  2,599,293,548 2,794,266,488

PRER, REERERE (EH%
KA (P38 HRAD (LU
B TEPHRIEHAR] R (FBERE
FEHDY F 71 GBI R
BREFANEFERIES B AEE
3,517,961,448 7G (2023 4. B
2,572,093,867 Ju X% (2023 £

). EFEAFIELREEEER
FIREMERA.

oK B R TR B E A )RR R

TR A S B Rl R S B E AR
RE %Y, BERERIEREZ
. REMEEDEEN&RE
EAEMNESRSMEBRNE
FHEMEEHNELNRSRETR
RESMEEENEH.
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22, CASH AND DEPOSITS - continued

23.

(¢) Total cash outflow for leases:

Amounts included in the cash flow
statement for leases comprise the
following:

Within operating cash flows
Within investing cash flows
Within financing cash flows

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23.

Accounts payable to:
- Cash clients
- Margin clients
- Butures clients
- Asset management clients
= Clearing houses
- Brokers

All of the accounts payable are expected to be
settled within one year or repayable on
demand, and their carrying amounts are their
estimated fair values.

—204 —

22.

ReFTEmK -

(c) MEREWHHBE:
ReERERPEFHEENUTE

I8:

EEBHREWN
ERRFASIN
TR BRI A

JE AT AR

AT ARk
-Rexp
-REEEF
-REF
-REZTBREF
- B
- R

The Group
2410
2024 2023
HKS HK$
96,988,292 88,235,800
96,988,292 88,235,800
The Group
ZEE
2024 2023
HK3 HK$
B BT
2,768,953,774 1,554,219,113
1,655,570,205 1,583,762,312
2,540,908 2,640,344
804,683 1,118,177
130,563,135 358,589,361
367,537,516 137,334,017
4,925,970,241 3,637,663,324

P B RR S TR — S NIE R R
REE, HIREEAHARTRAFE.
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24,

25.

26.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group's lease

liabilities:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

Less: total future interest expenses

Present value of lease liabilities

14K

1EELL {E 2 R
2EERLL{H 5 ER

i TR s
RETARRA

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Non-current
Employee benefits

Current

Margin deposits
Employee benefits
Accrued expenses
Other payables

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Non-current
- bonds (note (i))

Current
- bonds (note (1))
-~ medium term notes (note (ii)}

24, FHEAE

TRESN TAEENAEARRGEH

Zi#H:
2024 2023
Present Tetal Present Total
value of the minimumn value of the minimum
minimum lease minimum lease
lease payments payments lease payments payments
Bridliziiht o RRTAE RIEHRE RAEA
R IR B {HE IR B ¥
HKS HKS HKS HKS
28,677,153 90,764,043 89,102,358 96,987,292
13,946,343 34,614,689 91,959,776 50,764,043
11,877,366 12,064,459 45,823,709 46.679.189
45,823,709 46,679,188 137,783,485 137,443,232
134,500,862 §37,443,231 226,885,843 234,430,524
(2,942,369) (7.544,681)
134,500,862 226,885,843
i_- A
25. EALEMREIER &
The Group
2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
BT I
E[i 1]
B TIEF 629,807,397 685,603,003
High
RS 1,873,953,263 2,604,059,995
ATHE# 1,057,296,475 796,766,657
TRIERA 113,613,527 107,303,895
FHofth JEATER 122,538,473 254,809,646
3,167,401,738 3,762,940,193
3,797,209,135 4,448,543,196
4 foke Ay
26. DRITEBHER
The Group
#
2024 2023
HK$ HKS
/0
- &) 13,298,257,359 31,636,998,197
Jigy

- IR 11,116,529,722 .

- TRAS ) - 9,599,066,512
11,116,529,722 9,599,066,512
24,414,787,081 41,236,064,709
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26. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED - continued

Notes:

(i)

(i)

As of 31 December 2024, the Group
issued bonds of HK$24,414,787,081
(2023: HK$31,636,998,197) which are
guaranteed by Huatai Securities Co.,
Ltd., with aggregate nominal amount of
US$2,700 million and CNY3,025
million (2023: US$3,600 million and
CNY 3,025 million) The bonds are
unsecured with effective interest rate
ranging from 2.08% to 6.32% (2023:
1.43% to 6.33%).

As of 31 December 2024,
HK$13,298,257,359 (2023:
HK$31,636,998,197) were classified as
non-current based on remaining
maturities.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group
issued notes of HK$9,599,066,512
under the US$3,000,000,000 Medium
Term Note Programme which were
guaranteed by Huatai International
Financial Holdings Company Limited
(with issuer being a subsidiary of the
Company), with aggregate nominal
amount of HK$904 million, US$965
million and CNY1,050 million. The
notes were unsecured with effective
interest rate ranging from 3.84% to
6.61% with maturity within 1 year.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group
repaid the medium term notes in full.
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26.

ERITERES - 4
FfaE:

®

(if)

R2024F 12 B 31 H, &EESET
HEHE 24,414,787,081 JT (2023 HEME
31,636,998,197 7o) K EHEIF (K35,
BRI 2.08%Z 6.32%
(2023: 1.43%% 6.33%), fEFEmZE
REFROERATRMAER, O
BITERLBESERBEARET
2,700,000,000 7T & A\ R ¥
3,025,000,000 JT(2023 . FET
3,600,000,000 Ju N B ¥
3,025,000,000 7T).

HBE2024 12831 H, K
13,298,257,359 JT.(2023: #i#E
31,636,998,197 JT) $& 7 ik HA IR 448
AIERENEE .

FA2023F 12 A 31 H, AEERE
3,000,000,000 3764 # HA S i 51 #1
FIT S FRARIE AT 9,599,066,512
TOH R IR (E IR AR
3.84% & 6.61%), Ui EEtE
HH 2 22 B B 4 Rl B PR A BT 4Rt
EREEITAREATMBAT. &
BT EBABRETERIRAE
904,000,000 Jt. EJT 965,000,000 7T
K ANRH#E 1,050,000,000 7C, FEIB
¥H—ERN.

HE2024%F 12 8318, ££EED
ARREERERE.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

28.

ERTRMEEIER:

B1IATHE
nuragng

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At lanuary and
31 December

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company's
residual assets.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

COST R

At 1 January 2024 2024181 H
Additions wE

At 31 December 2024

ACCUMULATED BFHHH
AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2024 #2024 1A 1H

Charge for the year A

At 31 December 2024

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2024

MR E

At 1 January 2024 2024 1H1H

—207 -

27. BEA
2024 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
1 am [istd 2 4= it |
HK$ HKS
i T

8,800,000,000 8,800,000,000 8,800,000,000 8,800,000.000

20244 12 A 31 H

72024412 A 31 H

F20244 12 A 31 H

B R A RN R SRR
WERERLFEHRE —ZEN. if
HERERATNRGEETHEE R
SHAL.

mvEE
g
Trading Computer
rights software Total
T HHE sH BB &E
HX$ HK$ HK$
470,000 89,281,033 89,751,033
- 44,389,463 44,389,463
470,000 133,670,496 134,140,496
- (19,140,109 (19,140,109)
- (22,179,559) (22,179,559)
- (41,319,668) (41,319,668)
470,000 92,350,828 92,820,828
470,000 70,140,924 70,610,924
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28.

29.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued 28.

The Group - continued

COST
At 1 January 2023
Additions

At 31 December 2023

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2023

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2023

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023

B
2023 1A 1H
WE

FA2023 € 12 A 31 H
L

2023 1A 1 H
AR L

2023412 A 31 H

ERI{EME
R2023%F 12H 31 H

202341818

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER 29.

RESALE AGREEMENTS

As part of the reverse repurchase agreements,
the Group has received securities that it is
allowed to sell or re-pledge in the absence of
default by their owners. If the collateral
received declines in value, the Group may, in
certain circumstances, require additional
collateral. The Group has an obligation to
return the collateral to its counterparties at the
maturity of the contracts. As at 31 December
2024, the Group received securities as
collateral with total fair value of
HK$7,806,240 (2023: HK$137,039,800) on
these terms.

—208 —

BEBE -
M - K
Trading Computer
rights software Total
L st B i =i
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Bt BT T
470,000 39,296,192 39,766,192
- 49,984,841 49,984,841
470,000 89,281,033 89,751,033
- (5,864,448) (5.864,448)
- (13,275,661) (13,275,661)
- (19,140,109) (19,140,109)
470,000 70,140,924 70,610,924
470,000 33,431,744 33,901,744
BNEBREEREER

AEERE B NREGETE KB HRE
=Y, EERDEE ANETMEGRE
MTRT AR EE L BRER. WER
FRHERDEETYS, AEEERER
WA AR INERY. £EEUA
HESRBIARFSERDRIBENTE N
FIEFF. Bl 20244 12 A 31 H, &4
EHRA I EFRERYA T EHALE
7,806,240 75(2023: ¥&#E 137,039,800
JG)e
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30.

31.

FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Repurchase agreements are transactions in
which the Group sells a security and
simultaneously agrees to repurchase it (or an
asset that is substantially the same) at the
agreed date and price. The repurchase prices
are fixed and the Group is still exposed to
substantially all the credit risks, market risks
and rewards of those securities sold. These
securities are not derecognised from the
consolidated financial statements but regarded
as "collateral” for the liabilities because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of these securities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group entered
into repurchase agreements with financial
institutions to sell equities with total carrying
amount of HK$Nil (2023: HK$54,552,140),
which are subject to the simultaneous
agreements to repurchase these investments at
the agreed date and price.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

On 29 March 2021, 3,258,992 share awards
were granted to employees of the Company
under the employee share award scheme. The
employees under the scheme are rewarded
with ordinary shares of Huatai Securities Co.,
Ltd., the ultimate holding company of the
Company. These share awards will vest from
2 to 4 years after grant date.

30, EHEBEESMEER

31.

—209 -

FEEATEENERFERARAR
et e B R AR (Bl i R S5 BUOREUE
BEZX Y. BREACERE, REE1
RO HZFEFREERNMMEEE
. WERMEEER. ZERFIER
HEMBIRBNRIERER, BUWRAE
Bz TR, REAFEBREZ
SR 2 M8 KR o BB R [

20244 12 A 31 H, B HIER
A B RARET L E B i, LA EAER
B4Rl (2023 5. HEME 54,552,140 7T)
Z R, MERZRE AR EE E R
PR 2 [R5 R R PR «

CARS: fr A EERE R AT I R AR

20213 B 290H, WREE TR
atEl, 3,258,992 BRI FALT
ME T, BRESETETHE LESLE
FEFROEMRART M LB, EEE
FHE i F IR A E A AA T HE&ERA
A, ZEREESERTRERES
VOB AR R
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3L

32.

33.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION - continued

Movements of share awards are as follows:

At 1 January
Vested
Forfeited

At 31 December

During the year, share-based payment
expenses of HK$2,270,971 (2023:
HK$6,345,645) were recorded and credited to
reserve.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There is no material loan commitment and
commitment in relation to purchase of fixed
assets and intangible assets as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital comprises paid up share capital and
retained profits stated on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The objective
on managing capital of the Group is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for the sole shareholder.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to the sole shareholder,
return capital to the sole shareholder or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

31.

32.

33.
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PABLAG BRI SO AR & TR -

IR HESE BB In T
Number of share awards
I HE SE Eh AT
2024 2023

#m1A1H 2,080,296 3,162,992
o (979,809)  (1,045,074)
B (99,894) (37,622)
Mi2H 318 1,000,593 2,080,296

PAEEN, PARGHERE AR
SR1S¥EME 2270,971 TC(2023 4. HEHK
6,345,645 Ju)y HET AR .

WA AR N EE AR

20244 12 31 HR& 20234 12 A 31
B, ®EBEWRTERNEFRELBEE
5B B EE A STV EE IR

BAEHE

BARELEM BRI R ITE A BUE R A
ErREmA, AEERAEEYBERR
RSB REE S, DUFE AR
RALEIR

AEEERREARLEE, DEKERRN
U RHEREBELREE, 57 EFRE
BEALME, AEEWRRB L IAE—
FERAIRE . B — R g AR IET
. BE 20244 12 B 31 F & 2023 4
12 B 31 HIEEE, EAFKMEE,. BUE
KRBRE EEEL.
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33.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT - continued

The Company is also subject to regulatory
capital requirement imposed by the Securities
and Futures Commission ("the SEC") in Hong
Kong under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules ("the SF(FR)R").
Capital adequacy and utilisation of regulatory
capital are monitored daily by the Company's
management in accordance with the SF(FR)R.

The Company is required to report its liquid
capital on a monthly basis and has complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the
SF(FR)R throughout the years ended

31 December 2024 and 2023.

The Company is subject to regulatory capital
requirement imposed by the Insurance
Authority in Hong Kong under the Insurance
(Financial and Other Requirements for
Licensed Insurance Broker Companies) Rules
("IR™. The Company has complied with the
capital requirement under the IR throughout
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

33.
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34,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34.

In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the
year. All of these transactions were entered
into and conducted according to terms
mutually agreed between the relevant group
entities.

Transactions with related parties which the
Group entered into during the year are
summarised as follows:

Interest income from immediate holding company

Commission expense to ultimate helding company

Commission expense to a fellow subsidiary

Interest expense for subordinated loans from immediate
holding company (Mote a)

Interest expense for othet intercompany loans (Note b)

Management fee income received from fellow subsidiaries

Mznagement fee expense to fellow subsidiaries
Trading and investment gain/(loss) from derivatives

The Group also had the following outstanding
balances with related parties:

Amount due to ultimate holding company (Note b)
Amount due from/(to) immediate holding company

= Current accounts (Note b)

- Interest payable relating to subordinated loans (Note a)
Subordinated loans from immediate holding comparty

(Note a)

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (Note b)

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (Note b}

—-212 -

BRI 722 5

(AR S M B REAMB O TR S
bh, ALBRENERT TIEBITL S
FE RIS S IR ARERERLE
7RI 2 B R BK I AT AL R 3T

AEH R MBI T RERRT LR ST

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
# T
B A TR BN 2,488,724,074 2,011,355,524
BB ATINERE (9,192} (77,350)
FAME &R In&%E (2,421,506) {4,209,806)
A B HIERIR A RS R
FIBLH (2 (472,593,211) (463,879,225)
HABA BRI RS 8 50l
(F7E b) (222,200,693) (285,191,558)
FARRMELR
TR HL 1,088,170,372 744,624,014
[l 2% B IS 44 ) S E Y S L (68,469,939) (50,598,414
MR LR
R 999,129,735 (1,665,504,742)

A5 [ BB 7 PR R R B AR I T -

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS
#HE7T T
B S e I 24 B BT (B S b) (9,317,760} (9,373,680)
RS (RE) B F I A BRI
- AR (FHRE D) 40938,587,370  53,483,844,469
- RBEARE (s ) (102,250,979) (105,906,318)
e [ g AR
HALRR (Wi a) (8,541,280,000)  (8,592,540,000)
PR TR 2R B VR 4 7) akTE
(FifFE b) 15,525,510,561 26,561,166,476
B R R BB AR KT8
(MEEB) (499,582) (502,437)
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34,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
- continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The subordinated loans are ranked lower
regarding their status of claims relative
to other liabilities of the Company and
are interest bearing: US$500,000,000 of
the subordinated loans bears an annual
rate of Three-Month SOFR +2.86%
(2023: Three-Month SOFR +2.86%)
and US$600,000,000 bears a fixed
annual interest rate of 3.24% (2023:
3.24%). Repayment of the subordinated
loans is subject to the prior consent of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission.

Except for the current accounts due
from/(to) immediate holding company
which bears interest ranging from 4.27%
to 6.26% per annum (2023: 4.94% to
6.33% per annum), all other balances
are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

34, BAMARZ S - H

GE

(a)

(b)
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EHEE.
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35. LOAN PAYABLES

35.

General banking facilities were obtained from

banks to a total limit of*

Secured HeH
Unsecured HEHEHR
Accrued interest JEEF R

Total

NI

PERITHR N —RERITRE R &

2024 2024 2023 2023
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Facility limit Loan balance Facility limit Loan balance
HKEEE RS B BT
2,749,900,000 410,000,000 2,100,000,000 1,025,000,000
1,238,240,000 - 1,040,570,000 -
- 70,218 - 570,383
3,988,140,000 410,070,218 3,140,570,000 1,025,570,385

The banking facilities were primarily
collateralised by debt and equity securities.

The Company bears the interest ranging from
1.39% to 7.15% per annum (2023: 1.29% to
6.46 % per annum).

The details of the bank loan payables were as
follows:

$RAT Rl ¥ 2 2 AR B BB 2 YRR R
o

EAFABEHRANEHBEREE 130% E
7.15%(2023 5£: E5F 1.29% & 6.46%)-

BT B RAEEL T

Loans payables

36.

Within 1 year or on demand

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND  36.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have entered
into transactions subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar
agreement with counterparties. The gross
amounts of recognised accounts receivable
from and accounts payable to these
counterparties and the net balance as shown
on the consolidated statement of financial
position are disclosed as follows:

—214 -

The Group
THEE
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
i Shp-¢-
B 1 E AR EREE 410,070,218 1,025,570,385
SRS E R emlE ErHkeE

AEEETHEA T CBRBTHITIRGE
S H AR S HEE B O MR AERT AL
5. OHERMZENF N ERERS
BRERAMZE R A S B AR IR P sk
BRI T
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36.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 36, &RiEERLBAEHICS - 48

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - continued

Financial assets subjected to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements

Rl R R &

By, Zayiir LR =R

‘The Group
L
Gross ampunt
of recognised Net amount Refated amount
financial Liabilities of financiat not set off in the
setoff inthe assets presented consolidated statement
Gross amount cansolidated in the consalidated of financial position
of recognised stalement of statement of Financial Collateral
financial asscls financial position finaneial position instruments received et amount
BEAHBRIT  RESMBRE FpEEE M AR
[=1it Fech IR 2 FBFIRE Ferp R ARA0 11 B2 A0
Al U A AR ER B4 T (RN SRE & ifH SR g & i
HKS HKS HKS HK3S HKS HK®
At 31 December 2024 B2uAFI2ZANE
Accounts receivables [ se R 38 4,289,035,552 (271,115,820} 4,017.919,732 {106,613,834) {1,928,865.733) 1,982,440,165
Financial assets held
under resale agreements TH I (I el 5 76 3 4,057,900 - 4,057,900 - (4,057,500} -
At 31 December 2023 RunFRzANA
Accounts receivables T 5,468,508,045 (334,984,138) 5,133,523,907 (165,844,393) {2.322,131,698} 2,645,547316

Financial assets held
under resale agreements

LB RUE 2o 3

68,098,153

68,008,153

- (68,098,153)

Financial liabilities subjected to offsetting,

enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements

CHH 2R BT LI AR A B e R A
o e =

The Group
AW
Gross amount
of recognised Net amount Related amount
financial assets of financial not set off in the
sctoffinthe  liabilities presented consolidated statement
Gross amount consolidated  in the consolidated of financial positicn
of recognised statement of statement of Financial Collateral
financial liabilities financial pesition  financial position instruments pledged Net amount
REATARIRE  RESTHERR FPREEUHIRE
=X TEMATE  EREN FEE AN W) S 3T
e £ LEARESL doparmm SR At S&ETR 2T R giidi)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK3
At 31 December 2024 2024412 H 31 B
Accounts paysbles IR £,197,086,061 (271,115,820) 4,925,970,241 (106,613,834) {1,928,865,733) 2,890.490.674
Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreaments T 3 0% 2t i S 56 - - - - _ .
At 31 December 2023 RBw2sFERRANAE
Accounts payables AR 3972,647,462 (334,984,138) 3,637.663,324 (165,844,393) {2.322,131,608) 1,149,687.233
Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements  F{ Hi 5 I /e it 7 K 29,107,957 - 29,107,957 . (25.107.957) -

—-215 -
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The principal types of financial risk faced by
the Group in daily operation mainly include
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk,
currency risk and price risk. The Group had
formulated corresponding policies and
procedures to identify and analyse these risks,
and set up risk indicators, risk limits and
internal risk control processes in combination
with the actual circumstances with a view to
continuously managing the above risks
through the support of information systems
and effective mechanisms.

Risk management is a shared responsibility of
all the Group's employees. The Group
continuously enhances the risk management
awareness and risk sensitivity of all its
employees through training and assessment to
cultivate the risk management culture.

The Board of Directors takes ultimate
responsibilities for the Group's
comprehensive risk management. The
Compliance and Risk Management
Committee is set up by the Board to review
and make recommendations on the overall
risk management targets, fundamental
policies; and evaluate and make
recommendations on the risks of major
decisions which require the Board's review as
well as the solutions to these major risks; and
review and make recommendations on risk
assessment reports which require the Board's
review,

—216 —

Sk T A NSRS RN A FE

AREEREREESPY R AR E
EORERAR. RIPMERE. FIEAE
b R EMAMERS RS, SEE
SE T 1B R BURFRE 7 A8 A1 4 4 iE
SO, WS H IR R E KA
. BEGMREE. BN EERmeE, B
A HEEERE B R R
B S LIRS R

B EBERAREFE R ILHItRE

£, AEEEEZIEZF N, R
EERA T AN SEREEERAE
PR B A R I 0 L B A 3 4

EEOHAR SRR ERRBERKE
£ ERIRIOFMAKEERER

E, ARBEEENENREREE, &
FHEESETEETVRNES: HEE
EE OB E ORI B R iR e
BB RO M AT 3T A 2048 H 2 3
WEEFEEFTEEN R ERE
Diidanketc 3

- 128 -




HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReHMEREBE)ERAHF

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of asset loss of the
Group resulting from the default of a product
or bond issuer or counterparty (customer).

The Group has established a credit risk
management system which is being applied to
all entities of the Group, thereby achieving full
credit risk management coverage.

The Group mainly faced three types of credit
risks, namely (1) the risks of suffering from
loss due to customer's default in financing
business; (ii) the risks caused by default of the
bond issuer in bond investment business; (iii)
the risks of assets suffering from loss due to
the default by the counterparty in transaction
business.

With respect to financing business, the Group
adopted full-process control measures such as
stringent customer and underlying assets
management, dynamic monitoring and timely
risk mitigation to control the credit risk. The
Group implemented stringent risk control
processes, conducted special risk inspections
on margin financing and securities lending
business, strengthened the counter-cyclical
management mechanism, and improved the
standard of differentiated customers
management.

With respect to bond investment business, the
Group established a unified management
system for issuers. During the reporting
period, the Group continued to promote the
systematic construction of issuers' credit risk
management modules, and enhanced the
efficiency and pertinence of risk management.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

The following is the credit rating distribution
of debt securities held by the Group:

Credit rating analysis of debf securities

Rating
- From AAA to A-
- From BBEB+ to BBB-
- BB+ orbelow

Non-rated

Total

With respect to transaction business, the
Group promoted the construction of the
unified management system for counterparty,
further expanded the coverage of the unified
management of counterparty credit line at
group level and built a full counterparty list
system in order to strictly control its business
risk exposures. At the same time, the Group
continued to promote the systematic
construction of counterparty credit risk
management, and gradually realised the
platformisation of counterparty management
and related processes.

—-218 —
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The Group
koL |
2024 2023
HK$ HKS
T T
B R A AT
i
- B AAAE A- 2,917,665,068 20,588,575
- (3 BBB+ ¥ BBB- 137,988,461 162,531,806
- BBH+ELLF 186,547,721 27,669,955
3,242,202,150 210,750,336
FEPE 304,346,892 141,659,859
FLE 3,547,049,042 352,450,195

HRL B, FAEEEENT ISR
—EHERER, E—PREAEMET
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ERREERGIER, BFRREHF
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

The Group provided credit loss allowances for
account receivables from margin clients and
cash clients. The Group assessed the
continuous repayment, solvency and the
collateral to loan ratios of the borrowers to
analyse the risk factors and identified the three
stages of credit loss allowances of the
securities-backed lending assets. The details
are as below:

Description

Diversified co]lateml positions, with collateral to loan ratios
ratio of at least 150% and no overdue margin calls

BEITGRASH, ERFETER 150%, BEGRaR

Concentrated collateral positions or collateral to loan ratios
of at least 100%, with overdue margin ¢alls not exceeding 90 days

IEIP S P AR ETMER 100%, BB HELFHEE 90 8

Collateral to loan ratios below 100%,
or overdue margin calls exceeding 90 days

AT RERETR 100%, DHEBAMEE 0 B
Expected credit losses

For assets classified under Stage 1 and Stage
2 (see below for definition), the Group
assessed credit loss allowances using the risk
parameters modeling approach that
incorporated key parameters inclusive of
collateral to loan ratios and past due days.

—-219 -

37. ERMTRNEREMEENAFE - #
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HBRFEEF REEE P BUURK,
FERGSRENFEERER. EXK
BB RARAR RARMELLS, ST BT
FIERAMER, ERRARERE S
=farge, UEEFREBERGE. RE
FHRATRIT:

Stage of credit loss allowances

B

12 - month ECL Stage I
AR 12 {8 A FHME R ESIR #—RER
Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired Stage II
BEFEATNERERRBEGRARE BERER
Lifetime ECL - credit impaired Stage III
ERESIRMERBRACRESRRY B=RR

TSR ER

S BB B2BRERRTX)
PR E, HEEMREERMELL K
BMRBEERSH, ERAEER AR
SPETFHE R RBRER.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued
Expected credit losses - continued

For credit impaired assets classified under
Stage 3 (see below for definition), the Group
assessed credit loss allowances taking into
account the collateral securities under each
contract and the financial situation of the
borrower. The factors which the Group
considered when assessing the credit loss
allowances included but not limited to: the
industry sector of the borrower, the stock price
of the collateral securities, the average daily
trading volume of the collateral securities,
whether the borrowers are the controlling
shareholders of the collateral securities, the
liquidity and restriction on sales, the history of
blacklist or defaults of the borrower, the
collateral situation, and the credit
enhancement measures implemented by the
borrower. The Group assessed the above
factors as well as collateral to loan ratios to
evaluate and provide credit loss allowances.

The estimated loss rates for each class of
financial assets are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the respective class of
financial assets and are adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including
macroeconomic data such as inflation rate and
GDP growth rate. The identification of
internal credit rating for individual financial
assets is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific
financial assets is updated.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

Expected credit losses ~ continued

Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are
as below:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Exposures where there has

not been a significant

increase in credit risk since

initial recognition and that

are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with

the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months
is recognised.

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e.
reflecting the remaining lifetime of
the financial asset) is recognised

Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred. For
exposures that have become credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost
{net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount from the
beginning of the subsequent
reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37. 2R T EfSRERMSHEANFE -5
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

Expected credit losses - continued

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group's financial assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment:

Advances {0 customets in
margin financing

Accounts receivables from cash
and other clients

Accounts receivables (brokers and
dealers, clearing houses and fee
and other receivables)

{RAEE T Hh 3 2K

RRAREFHMES
AL

EEEM - #
TRH e B A -

TP R A T B AT
fis i el A T BB 2 LG

The Group
12-month or

lifetime ECL 2024 2023
12 @A Gross Gross
TR carmying amount carTying amount
ERER MEREIE ARME
HK$ HK$
#IT T

12-month ECL

12 {8 A fTESS
A 954,109,903 956,001,433

Lifetime ECL {non-

credit impaired)
AT 1,144,968,097 1,569,469,769

fEREH ARG
#)

Lifetime ECL (credit
impaired)
FHATRH 72,737,211 102,412,016
5 RIS (SAREH) T T

12-month ECL

12 {8 A $Tai
EREEE 598,399,921 515,680,751

Lifetime ECL (non-
credit impaired)
FREATRR 7.044
HEEE G ERE
)

Lifetime ECL (credit

impaired) 53,836,564
TFRYATEH .

ARESHR (RAEHE)

B RRBR(RAC A AL 5 12-month ECL
B BEFAURERRAT 12 {8 A #1589

it FEYER)

(EEdER 1,277,574,860 2,028,982,667

Lifetime ECL {non-

credit impaired)
TFIRIATRE 69,174,262 45,009,802

AR (SR
#)

Lifetime ECL {credit
impaired)
FERTEY
{ERESIR (FRRSH)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37. 4R TEMESHAMEENA Y - 4F
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued {E &g - 48
Expected credit losses - continued TFBHE g5 -
The tables below detail the credit risk TREAVALEZEATEREBEELT
exposures of the Group's financial assets, e EEmENE RN, -4
which are subject to ECL assessment:
- continued
The Group
12-month or AN
lifetime ECL 2024 2023
1R2{ERwH Gross Gross
TR carrying amount carrying amount
HaEa AR IR
HKS$S HKS
= %
Financial assets held under BAEESRIRES 12-month ECL
resale agreements 12 {8 A TR
ERER 4,057,900 68,098,153
Cash and deposits Rafims 12-month ECL
12 1 B Ry TR
ERER 2,509,293,548 2,794,266,488
Bank balances held on behalf LR EFESTMRT 12-month ECL
of customers o 12 {8 R #0758
(= emEsa 3,517,961,448 2,572,093,867
Deposits and other receivable BeRE bR 12-month ECL
12 {5 R 0 TRHA
e 192,255,894 134,088,704
Amount due from immediate FEIT HAEIE R 4 E) 12-month ECL
holding company &g 12 {8 7 M7RA
frovhpuers 40,836,336,391 53,377,937,651
Amount due from fellow EkEEMBAR 12-month ECL
subsidiaries EIE 12 {8 § 174
1A 15,525,510,561 25,561,166,476
Details on movement in allowance for ECLs B P ENEE R TERRE B8 1
of accounts receivable from margin clients are R AR 203 E.

disclosed in note 20.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37. &FT ANSiEMSEmAPE - 4
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued ER B - 4

Expected credit losses - continued FEHEE RS- 18

At the end of the reporting period, the AEEHR, AEBEAREEEFR
exposure to the Group's largest margin client IR R P I REIREIE A PG R 2
and the top five margin clients represented L BRI BE SR 4ARE R 17% K 33%

17% and 33% (2023: 12% and 37%) of the

. 0, 0
total accounts receivable from margin clients (2023 5+ 12% R 37%).

respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is FEETENESEEAMESIESRH
represented by the carrying amount of each BENMOMBERNEBNETE. A&
financial asset in the consolidated statement of Y R A AL B A A A RS
financial position. The Group does not (=15 R B B e R _

provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk Uit B {4 S e

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of the Group B B e R fe A A E Ak LA T R A
not being able to ob'tain sufficient funds at a BEEER LGS, UEMARHERE.
reziconable cost 1:1 tLrlr}e t? meet %ue dela::ls;, AT HA TSI R SRR
perform payment obligations and meet the e A B <R 1 ] R o
capital requirements of normal businesses. The H fé&.ﬁﬁ?‘%m@ﬁﬂ °A§$ BE%L !
Group established a fully functional liquidity m% %{H@J &El‘lgjf_ HIEIER, ?iﬁ%
risk management system to identify, measure, B AR MBI L ST AR L_ﬁE‘
monitor, control and report on its overall Bl BrARE, WARREREE
liquidity risk to improve the informatisation of S EAE KT, DiRmmEE
liquidity risk management, enhance the B EER . FTEMEBRRIRES, Blsatk
capabilities in the identification, measurement AEEERREIS AR . AN,
onathen e Srou sbiits b sddressi R SR B R L (A B S 2 B
strengthen the Group's ability in addressing T E Sy e

liquidity risk. In addition, the Group also , N 3
established a right-sized liquidity assets RE, BRERIRRTRARRE

reserves based on the risk appetite and MBHET K.
maintained sufficient liquidity assets with high

quality to ensure the satisfaction of liquidity

needs under stressful scenarios in a timely

manner.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that

movements in market interest rate will cause

fluctuation in the Group's financial position
and cash flow.

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair

value or future cash flows of its financial
instruments will fluctuate as a result of

changes in market interest rates. In respect of

the Group's interest-bearing financial
instruments, the Group's policy is to mainly

transact in financial instruments that mature or

reprice in the short to medium term.
Accordingly, the Group would be subject to
limited exposure to fair value or cash flow
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates.

For financial instruments held on the reporting

date that expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk, the Group adopts sensitivity

analysis as the primary instrument for
monitoring interest rate risk. Sensitivity

analysis measures the effect of any reasonable

and potential changes to the interest rate on

the net profits and sharcholders' equity under

the assumption that all the other variables
remain constant.

Interest rate profile
Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk
exposure is summarised as follows:

Debt instruments

37. €M TANEMEMERRMATFE -

7] 2% A Fiy

A2 A A AR B B AR AR &
TRE S TS5 RGBT S A4 S B R,

5 -

AEFMEEMTAENAFEIRER
ST B R T R 4 B A
fi. HRARENHEERMLE, &£
BB R E B SERE N AR
EfzENeMIR. Eit, *EEH
T AT PR (59 R B BRAT T35 R 20K I B
T AR B A TE EIR SN 2

BRHRE D FR R AREEERAFE
MR e TR, FEEFHEUR
P AR A BT A R A e =Tk
FAGBE T EEL B RS
Rex T, FRBFEEGE, WHAHE
S, T SR A SR R e SR 2 A
&,

FIEEH
A THEFIR B
FERERATFENREBBAR T

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
HETE B0
BHLA 2,979,862,603 259,578,607
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

37. &M TRENEREMEEENLTE - E

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Interest rate profile - continued
Fair value interest rate risk - continued

At 31 December 2024, if market interest rates
had been 50 basis points (2023: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss after tax for the year would
have increased/decreased by HK$4,170,176
(2023: HK$551,692).

Cashflow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
exposure is summarised as follows:

Debt securities
Debt securities issued

At.31 December 2024, if market interest rates
had been 50 basis points (2023: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss after tax for the year would
have increased/decreased by HK$48,393,093
(2023: HK$49,121,433).

— 228 —

2 - 4

FIZEZH - 15

AR 2B - 48

2024 € 12 B 31 B, H7T5F 218 0/
B 50 AFEBE(2023 4. 50 {REED), T
e b BRI, ENRBEES

BAS B 0 /m > R 4,170,176 75(2023
4. B 551,692 J0).

HemEF R AR
FEERBREREFRERERNT -

2024 2023

HK$ HKS$

W BT
IS 3,424,862 -
EETIERES  (11,602,858,658)  (11,765,612,752)

2024412 A 31 B, {MTTHERI S/
Wb 50 MEEEE(2023 45 S0 fAEED), T
i Hih s ERERAE, FNBRREES
BTSN > #E W 48,393,003 JT(2023
5. WEWE 49,121,433 70).
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Interest rate profile - continued
Cashflow interest rate risk - continued

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's
loss/profit after tax (and retained profits) that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's loss/profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as
2023.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
manages its foreign currency exposure by
matching the currencies of its financial assets
and liabilities.

The Group manages its foreign currency
exposure by matching the currencies of its
financial assets and liabilities and entering
into cross currency interest rate swaps.

The Group has ensured that their net currency
risk exposure is maintained at an acceptable
level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at market exchange rates where necessary to
address the short-term imbalances.

37.
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SR T R B ERE R EEMATE - &

A -
FIEER - 4
HemBrRaNR - #

DL _E SRk o A R R R B AR
ROEEE, YHERARENEERS
HFsERen T (FERREHRE
BRATFEMERE, HAREBNRR
R EsiRAR (RORE R RIRIEG g,
RAEEEPBRERTE OFESFIRE
TR ES MRSRAIZE A BRE
ME, AREKERRERMERN FIHRE
A TREINEE, RENSE BRI S
BB ELFE S A B8k
HftEr. LB R4% 2023 SRR —%&
HEHEAT .

= L9

B RMRENSERBINER SR T
AREFRBFEENRE. FAEBEER
EHNesMRENSMEBENRE, g
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FEEEBILE A EN &R A EN
B, UEERSE AR, WHERTIX
BN R H R

MR HBRERNREER AREEE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk

primarily through its agency brokerage

transactions and clients' trust balances that are

denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the operations to which

they relate. The major transactions of the
Group are entered in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi, Euros and United States dollars.
As Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United
States dollar, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between Hong

Kong dollar and the United States dollar to be

insignificant.
Exposure to currency risk

The following table presents the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or

liabilities denominated in a cuurency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date,

Net exposure arising from recognised assets
and liabilities

Net exposure arising from recognised assets
and liabilities

37.
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&R TR SR EREENATE - &

BN -
AEEFENABELCEZLEFER
AR LU R 263 BT R R LASM O B B
AHETERE R AR, REBEER
BTG, ARK. BUTKETTET.
RS G oS, ARERERET
HRTUE R ESHHRML R ER.

BH RGO

TRIRAER A BRS HK LAAE R S AR
HDhEe & CAAb I B R HE R TR 3
ERARFEENEYERGLD. Rk
BEREAR IR R R RS TR
o

2024
Exposure to forsign currencies
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

H i AR
(BUETTER)
Renminbi AR Euro BXFG
BREBIRRE
[z dmbrt ] 361,184,844 27,529,766
2023
Exposure to foreign currencies
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B AT
(LUETTHIR)
Renminbi A K% Euro BXFE
EaUEikinE
P B EE 201,604,237 32,763,976
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37. &R TEMSHAMRSHENATE -8

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued
Hedges of currency risk

Cross currency swaps have been entered into
hedge foreign currency risk.

The following table provides information on
the cross currency swaps which have been
designated as cash flow hedges of the
currency risk arising from the Group's fixed
rate debt securities and loan denominated at
CNY:

Notional amount
Carrying amount
- Asset
- Liability

The swap matures in next 1 - 3 year (2023:
next 2 years) matching the maturity of the
related debt securities issued (see note 26).

The Group seeks to hedge the benchmark
foreign currency risk and applies a hedge ratio
of 1:1. The existence of an economic
relationship between the cross currency
interest rate swaps and the fixed rate debt
security issued is determined by matching
their critical contract terms, including the
reference interest rates, currency
denomination, tenors, , maturity dates, interest
payment and receipt dates, the notional
amounts of the swaps and the outstanding
principal amounts of the debt. The main
source of hedge ineffectiveness in these
hedging relationships is the effect of the
counterparty and the Group's own credit risk
on the fair value of the swaps which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the change in exchange
rate.

—231 -
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FEMEFET XX R BG4 LR
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TRIIH O IR E A2 5 B [ e 7 243
s AREERESZNERERRR

EMEEMNZ X & EHER:
The Group
FM
2024 2023
HK$ HKS
HEST B
EHREE 3,266,395,000  3,429,148,049
IRT& 8
SWE . .
-8B 182,585,759 36,153,761

MR E T RAI—E=FN(2023
. ZF)RENN, HEBETRIAHERED
ez MBI B L AC( R INEE 26).
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

37. &R TEMSHEAMEERMATE - &

- FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued
Hedges of currency risk - continued

The following table provides a reconciliation
of the hedging reserve in respect of currency
risk and shows the effectiveness of the
hedging relationships:

Batance at 1 January
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge
recognised in other comprehensive income

Net amount reclassified to profit or loss

Balance at 31 December (note)

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss

Note: The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates to
continuing hedges.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's
loss/profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar
~ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Effect
on profit after tax for Renminbi is accounted
for the foreign currency exposures under
foreign exchange contracts as of 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.

— 232 —

B L - 8
BHRGHIER - 8

TRIEA T HRRE AR ENHEY
B, WERT T ERIMRARE M.

2024 2023
HK$ HKS
W18 1 Habstes 42,038,857 48,172,872
REBEmEA
AR R G E
ERIRFT M S (147,193,133)  (63,026,799)
R B 2 R 57,087,036 56,892,784
12831 B/
SEeR(HTER) (48,067,240) 42,038,857
RIBEPHER
SRR

MisE:  EMRHER 2RI,

TP RARE BRGNS BRI R
BE v U ) 5] B A £ [ BT AR SE B K R R O B
R ER 5 BA SR Aes s (iR AR B e o4t AL B
B AT AR IR 8. Bk
mE, FAEEERFTRAME BT
ER-T=R - RN o ope i e S aF:: i)
BEEMARE KRS . A\ RWEERE,
HeEReERENNZEDE S’ 2024
£ 12 431 HE 20234 12 A 31 H4ME
S ARRE,
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ERSHMEREBFRAF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued

Sensitivity analysis - continued

Changes in exchange rates
T

Renminbi AR
Furo BT

The table above indicates the impact on equity
of 5% appreciation of RMB and EUR, there
will be an opposite effect with the same
amount if the currencies depreciate by the
same percentage.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. To manage the price
risk, the performance of the investee company
is regularly monitored.

—233 -

37. &M TAMNSREMEEMAFE- &

B R -
BB 7T -

Sensitivity (in Hong Kong dollars
B A TAIR)
% 2024 2023
+5 15,079,467 8,416,977
+5 1,149,368 1,367,896

LRIGR T AR RECTARE I AHE
SUHER T EERRE, FEREE
FREERZE, AN REAR bR
FRERTT RERAEE.

DL RSB S M R IR AR 3 R R 2 SR
BREmEE, YEERRENHE
FEERREHRTRE NEAEEEA
ABEEREENEMTE (BEFEE
2 7 [ LB SR A B SR ZhRE B ¥ LA 4b
OB R EHE R B BIR AN BIRGRIR) . 32
3 AT AN ELTE AR SR B 9 51 e B P TR B35S
IMEBHM B RRITEANER. &5
Fr R4 2023 ) R —HELEEIT
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37. £ TEMNSERAMSEATE - 44
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Price risk - continued {8 A% L - 4
The following table demonstrates the TRFRABREEGN AP ESEH)
sensitivity of the Group's loss/profit after tax 10%, A= B4 B IE/8 F BRE 25 AR
and equity to every 10% change in fair values BN,
of the relevant equity stock prices.
The Group The Group
A4RE A&
2024 2023
Effect Effect Effect Effect
on profit/loss on other on profit/loss on other
aftertax and  components aftertax and  components
retained profits ~ of equity retained profits  of equity

Changein SRR H#EARM  Changein HHRIREEH SHEREXM
fair value R BT F Hk 45 fairvalue  FR{REIHEF HALER S
AT HBE Jink:2 BB ATESE NEE HE s

% HK$ HK$ % HKS HK$
Market price of BERETE 10 27,538,235 - 10 36,887,514
Equity investments {10) (27,538,235) - (1) (36,887,514)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the PLESBESrEE, SEEGRRE
instantaneous change in the Group's TR/ F (R AR B RS B B A T s Bl
loss/profit after tax (and retained profits) that AR BT S5 A T ENRS RSk,
would arise assuming that the changes in fair JREFE A B S 5B A B A SR SR T

values had occurred at the end of the reporting 5 1 o A 4 R B A L B B T

period and had been applied to re-measure

those financial instruments held by the Group B
which expose the Group to price risk at the

end of the reporting period.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT AND 37.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on _financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value

Definitions of fair value are detailed in note 3.
An analysis of the fair value and the valuation
techniques of financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value are as follows:

Financial assets measured at
fair value

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt instruments
- Listed
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed
- Unlisted

Funds
- Listed

Convertible bonds

Derivative assets
- Interest rate swaps
- Futures and options contracts
- Total return swaps
- Foreign exchange forwards
- Warrants and CBBCs

Fair value at
31 December

Sl T B Ay SRR BN AT -

BATESBSREER A EIOAT
EE

AFEMERFHRINGE 3. DATER
EfemEEMeil AEN AT ELMA
EERT T

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2024
categorised into

2024 BR2024%E 128318
B 2024 £ AR B AR
12H 31 B8 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
APE BIES B2 EG 1B
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
i I I WL
AT Ew B
ERRE
AP RARR
HISHBEE
HIBTA
- kW 3,474,457,617 3,474,457,617 -
- gk 518,398,173 - 518,398,173
3,992,855,790 3,474 457,617 518,398,173
R ES
- ki 2,217,383,793 2.214,714,591 2,669,202 -
B | Al 320,096,907 - - 320,096,907
2,537,480,700 2,214,714,591 2,669,202 320,096,907
&
-k 1,638 1,638
Tl i 72,591,425 - 72,591,425
MERE
- FZRIRHR 16,706,442 - 16,706,442
- R RAREEH 157,213,734 157,213,734 - .
-Ig Bk 471,192,783 - 471,192,783 -
- BHAEER 36,546,956 - 36,546,956 -
- ERR R AR 16,134,203 16,134,203 - -
697,794,118 173,347,937 524,446,181 -
7,300,723,671 2,388,064,166 4,074,164,425 838,495,080
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and

37. &R TAMNERMAMREENAFE -

RAFEEBRGREE R A FKAF

liabilities measured at fair value - continued

Fair value at
31 December

EES - &

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2024
categorised info

2024 #2024 128318
2024 5 SERELLT B AT At BuE
12831 BH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFE 1 B4 EIEGE HIBER
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS
Interest in joint venture EERANZEN 225,442,034 - - 225,442,034
Financial [iabilities HFHATERHRR
measured at SRE %
fair value
Finaneial Habilities L -TFEARIR AR
at fair value EBER
through profits or loss
Debt instruments ®ETR
- Listed -t (5,371,309,311) - {5,371,309,311) -
Equity securities™® A E
- Listed -k (54,497,359) (54,497,359) - -
Interests in consolidated
investment funds attributable
to other holders e AR (3,012,603) - - (3,012,603)
Structured notes et ALt {15,208,469,524) - (13,490,882,391)  (1,717,587,133)
Derivative liabilities fERR
- Interest rate swaps - Pl (258,640,002) - (258,640,002)
- Futures and option contracts - AR EARES A (134,410,361) (134,410,361) -
- Total return swaps -IRBE R {1,068,351,382) - (1,068,391,382)
- Foreign exchange forwards - JEAASNE &EY (36,546,957) - (36,546,957}
- Warrants and CBBCs - RRERE R AR TR (84,000,262) (84,090,262) -
(1,582,078,964)  (218,500,623) (1,363,578,341}
(22,219,367,761)  (272,997,982) (20,225,770,043)  {1,720,599,736)
*  The balance represents short selling of listed equity * OBEAR EWESESNES.
securities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT AND  37. &5t T ER4EhE s A Py - 48
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and A REEERESE EE AERHAFE
T . . =
liabilities measured at fair value - continued B4 - 8
Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 December 2023
31 December categorised into
2023 BR203FE12631H
B202345E REUTEEATESRNE
1283184 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYE 2 1ES E2BE B3
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
Financial assets measured at AR A
fair value SRRE
Financial assets at fair value HRFEAIIRARE
through profit or loss BB E
Debt instruments BHTHR
- Listed ) 283,774,623 - 283,774,623 -
- Unlisted -JE Ldf 2,187,928,261 - - 2,187,928,261
2,471,702,884 - 283,774,623 2,187,928,261
Equity securities S
- Listed -k 7,801,628,164 7,794,865,134 6,763,030 -
- Unlisted -JeLW 1,046,756,828 - - 1,046,756,828
8,848,384,992 7,794,865,134 6,763,030 1,046,756,828
Funds HaE
- Listed i 201,547,452 201,547,452 - -
Convertible bonds AR 68,675,572 . 68,675,572 -
Derivative assets ERE
- Interest rate swaps - FIRE 59,761,418 - 59,761,418 -
- Futures and options contracts -REABBESS 71,180,780 71,180,780 - -
- Total return swaps - I E 324,481,145 - 324,481,145 -
- Foreign exchange forwards -BHSESR 721,110 - 721,110 -
- Warrants and CBBCs - BRI K hERE 438,791 438,791 - -
456,583,244 71,619,571 384,963,673 -
12,046,894,144 8,068,032,157 744,176,898 3,234,685,089
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities meagured at fair value - continued

EEY - &

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023

Fair value at

37. &MTRENEHEREENATFE - H

A EE B RS & 2 I B EI AT

31 December categorised into
2023 2023512831 H
Hoo2 & oF Ly
128 31 A% Level 1 Level2 Level 3
A¥E 1B EoRBi IEER
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS
Interest in joint venture EEBLETES 420,879,122 - - 420,879,122
Financial liabilities BATFEEEN
measured at SRh A
fair value
Financial liabilities BA-PEEERARL
at fair value EEE W
through profits or loss
Debt instruments HIFT A
- Listed -k (5,505,119,096) - £5,505,119,096) -
Equity securities™ R
- Listed -k (7,777,218) (7,777,218) - -
Interests in consolidated
investment funds attributable
to other holders AR HE & (6,978,860) - - (6,978,860)
Structured notes i R (25,726,740,049) - (19,491,005,280)  (6,235,734,769)
Derivative liabilities ffE & m®
- Interest rate swaps - FREH (59,706,831) - (59,706,831) -
- Futures and option contracts -REREES (90,275,053) (90,275,053) - -
- Total return swaps - E#R (1,461,679,648) - (1,461,679,648) -
- Foreign exchange forwards SIBHAMNEES (18,231,948) - (18,231,948) -
- Warrants and CBBCs - MR R e (34,179,673) (34,179,673) - -
(1,664,073,153)  (124,454,726) (1,539,618,427) -
(32,910,688,376)  (132,231,944) (26,535,742,803)  (6,242,713,629)
*  The balance represents short selling of listed equity * GREEICER PSRN EST.
securities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, there were no significant transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2. Transfers into
or out of Level 3 are disclosed as below. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of financial instruments traded
in active markets (i.e. Level 1) are based on
quote prices at the end of reporting period.

The fair values of debt instruments determined
with reference to market observable
broker/financial institution quotes. The fair
value of derivative finanecial instruments is
determined based on discounted cash flow
meodel applying various market observable
financial parameters, including interest rates,
forward exchange rate, credit spread, yield
spread, etc. Structured notes are mainly
classified as Level 2 fair value measurements
as their valuations are based on the underlying
assets which are also classified as Level 2 fair
value measurements.

If one or more of these significant inputs in
valuation are not based on observable market
data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 37, &ftT EMESRRGSENATE - 4
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and BATEHAEBNESREER EEHNAF
liabilities measured at fair value - continued BBk - 48
Information about Level 3 fair value HFAEE 3 B L - E ARG B
measurements
The movements during the year in the balance LR 3 BN FEFER SRR RS
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as eI T,
follows:

2024 2023

HKS$ HK$

I B
Financial assets measured HATFHEHRTER

at fair value and interest in joint venture: ERMBER
REBAREMNREN:

At 1 January R1A1RE 3,655,564,211 4,315,771,340
Additions BA - 215,526,489
Disposals B (1,704,357,470) (430,409,069)
Change in fair value NFELEE (887,269,627} (445,324,549)
At 31 December B12A 31 H 1,063,937,114 3,655,564,211

2024 2023

HKS$ HKS$

BT B
Financial liabilities measured HAFEEER

at fair value: KA
At 1 January ®1B1H (6,242,713,629) (243,167,762)
Additions BA (182,891,945) (6,001,392,769)
Disposals K 4,831,285,228 -
Change in fair value ATFHEE) (126,279,390) 1,846,902
At 31 December ®12R31H (1,720,599,736) (6,242,713,629)
The following table presents the related TRNHBEIEFATFHEFTENTE
valuation techniques and inputs of the major SR SR E S SR ME.
financial products with Level 3 fair value
measurements.
- 152 -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements - continued

Valuation techniques
H{EHH
Financial assets #R0 7F
Unlisted equity securities at fair Market approach
value through profit or loss and ¥
interest in joint venture
EAFEEESARNELN
EHRHRRSELRNER
Debt securities at fair value through Discounted cash flow
profit or loss/fair value through model
other comprehensive income AT IR G,
EAFEESRRER DT
MNERHIE TR SF
Finaneial liabilities 2 & & i
Structured notes The return of the note is
Frt dided: ] linked to unlisted equity
securities, and the note
is valued directly with
reference to underlying
asset
FHREHRMIE LT
EHEEAME, WEHR
HEEESEENRE
HE
Interests in consolidated investment The fair value is linked to
funds attributable to other holders related fund
RN investments, and is
valued directly with
reference to related fund
AFHBRANEER R
W, BEEESE
AAMEEEE
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37. &MIANSHEREBENAPHE - H

AT EHEI B R SRS E R A AT

B -

R 3 BRATEE BHIEE -

Significant
unobservable input(s)
HAHLRE
RNV

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the project
company;

- Price to sales multiple

R R B AR Mg
MR 2 AT T e
CiF&itrSii e
- (R4% S 85 S A5

Discount rate for lack of
matktetability
hE MR EE s R

Risk adjusted discount rate
B R R IR

Fair value of underlying asset

MR E LT

Fair value of related fund

MRESATE

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to fair value
B A BB AT
EZ iz

The higher the pricing
multiples, the higher the
fair value

AEERER, AFE
o4

The higher the discount
rate, the [ower the fair
value

FEREOE, AFHER

The higher the risk
adjusted discount rate,
the lower the fair value 48

B R R R A
o, ATPEEE

The higher the fair value
of underlying asset, the
higher the value of
structured note

A R AP
SRR

The higher the fair value
of related fund,
the higher the value of
interest

HHEEATEER,
A O
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  37.

38.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their fair values as at

31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 38.

Subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group issued notes of
US$50 million with maturity within 1 year.

SR TR EREAREEMAE - 5

EEAFEFRNSREE X A FIL
FE

BE204FE 12431 HL2023E 128
31 H, AEEiRAAS#EE R AR
SRR ERSMAEZ REEREIAF
EARE .

WE AR BIE
2024 12 B 31 BERBEHZEES

MBmEMERR, AEBCETET
5TEER BHRHNSE—FEN.
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